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Financial Highlights
CrR LS

For the year ended 31 December BE+=-B=+—RHLEE 2019 2018
(in HK$°000) (F#&x) —E-hE ZT-)N\F +/(-)
Revenue A 4,925,733 4,415,409 +11.6%
Gross profit EH 1,944,833 1,626,681 +19.6%
Operating profit Sl 761,626 639,269 +19.1%
Profit before income tax bR BT 1S B AT & 754,673 632,742 +19.3%
Profit for the year F A 624,864 515,398 +21.2%
Profit attributable to the owners of RABEE ARG R
the Company 623,873 522,470 +19.4%
Research and development costs (included in MER> (BREETRERAA)
administrative expenses) (398,759) (332,016) +20.1%
Net impairment losses on financial assets TREEZREFER (65,914) (43,290) +52.3%
Share-based payment expenses (included in BHZNER (BEEHEHERX
selling and administrative expenses) RITHERA) (38,686) - NANEA
Key financial information excluding share- FEHBER (FTEERD
based payment expenses XHER)
Operating profit =iyl 800,312 639,269 +25.2%
Profit for the year FEm A 663,550 515,398 +28.7%
Profit attributable to the owners of RATFFB ARG EF
the Company 662,559 522,470 +26.8%
2019 2018
At 31 December (in HK$'000) R+t=ZA=+—-B(F#&x) =TB-h&F —T—)\F +(-)
Total current assets RBEERE 6,196,703 5,343,736 +16.0%
Total assets EE®E 6,719,223 5,775,554 +16.3%
Net current assets MEEEFE 4,321,049 3,802,754 +13.6%
Total equity R G 4,739,352 4,212,608 +12.5%
EARNINGS PER SHARE & DIVIDEND
BREAMNRRKE
2019 2018
Per Share (in HK$) R (Bx) —E-AFE —ZT)N\F +/(-)
Earnings per share B AT
- Basic —EK 0.567 0.475 +19.4%
- Diluted —#E 0.567 0.475 +19.4%
Proposed final dividend per ordinary share BEERERRRERE 0.06 0.04 +50%




Financial Highlights
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FINANCIAL RATIOS

d)

Bt =
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZFE-NF
Gross profit margin EF = 39.5% 36.8%
Operating profit margin e = 15.5% 14.5%
Net profit margin R 12.7% 11.7%
Current ratio B b 2 3.3 35
Return on equity’ 1 % O] ' 13.2% 12.4%
Return on assets? & EE Bl 9.3% 9.0%
Financial ratios excluding share-based B (FTEERAXSEA)
payment expenses
Operating profit margin FErnp ] P 16.2% 14.5%
Net profit margin R 13.5% 11.7%
Return on equity 1 % [0 14.0% 12.4%
Return on assets BEB® 9.9% 9.0%
TURNOVER DAYS
BEAH
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Year 5E -1 ZE-RF Z2—+tF -\ ZE-If
Inventory? "rE 112 142 138 146 164
Trade and bills receivables L ETVE eSS 121 164 158 155 134
Trade and bills payables® ERERRENEE 119 152 138 140 158
Cash conversion® REBme 115 154 158 161 140
Notes B 71
1 Return on equity = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/Total 1 AR = ANTEAE ARG FRE
equity as at year end e
2 Return on assets = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/Total 2 BEBFR=ADRAFEABELEN  FREE
assets as at year end #1E
3 Inventory turnover days = Average Gross inventory balance/(Cost of sales 3 GEBEBH-FHTEEEHREE(FRH
for the year/365 days) ER AR, 3650)
4 Trade and bills receivables turnover days = Average Gross trade and bills 4 JEUCBR SR I FE U SR AR E 88 B 8= T FE AR
receivables balance/(Turnover for the year/365 days) REERERESHEE, (FREEE 365
H)
5 Trade and bills payables turnover days = Average Gross trade and bills 5 FERBRR R EREIEEE A& = P EMERR
payables balance/(Cost of sales for the year/365 days) REWREREE(FRHEEXE3658)
6 Cash conversion days = Inventory turnover days + Trade and bills 6 HeERAH-—GFERS S+ BRI NE

receivables turnover days — Trade and bills payables turnover days

WEREEE RS- RAER R ERERBER
%



Bank Card Transaction Flow of Electronic Payment

RIT

TREFZAX SRR

The following is a simplified diagram illustrating the transaction flow in
a typical electronic payment transaction
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E-payment
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E-payment Terminals

Solutions Provider
BT RIBER
T RALRER
(e.g. PAX Global)

(B0 E EIRER)

Terminals Products

BT XARIRER

E-payment Terminals solutions provider sells E-payment Terminals
products and provides related services to commercial bank and
acquirer directly or through distributor.

Cardholder purchases with card at a merchant through an
E-payment Terminals.

The E-payment Terminals sends transaction data to the acquirer.

The acquirer sends authorisation request and verifies with the card
issuer that the card number and transaction amount are both valid
through the network of card association.

The card issuer verifies that the cardholder’s credit is sufficient and
grants authorisation.

The acquirer receives the response and relays it to the merchant.
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Products Highlights (for reference only) o ~ . | Ay |
ATER (EHE%)

ANDROID SMART E-PAYMENT SOLUTION (A-SERIES)
BRETFXIBRA R (ARS])

General features: Powered by Android operating system, PCl PTS 5.x certified, the latest certification in the industry.
Compact, portable, equipped with a large high resolution touch screen and inbuilt dual cameras.
Support various kinds of payment options, including bank card payments, Near Field Communication
("NFC") contactless and QR code payments.

— R AR SRR R G R BB EABITHOPCI PTS SR SMNTS - HEFH AEHABEEHR
RNESRGHE THTERLNT R BERT R NFCEBR R =B o
A930 . A920

ALL-IN-ONE SMART ELECTRONIC CASH REGISTER SOLUTION (E-SERIES)
BREEERN—RBABRAIR (ERS)

General Features: Powered by Android operating system, the all-in-one integrated solution delivers cost efficient and
space saving features to merchants. Certified with PCI PTS 5.x, the latest certification in the industry.
Stylish, large color touch screen, customer-facing display and an inbuilt camera. Support various kinds of
payment options including bank card payments, NFC contactless and QR code payments.

—MRAFE NZEEEZFRIEN —BLRBRF R EEF EEE EREMBCR - 2 m A %N KHPCIPTS 5.x3R
AEC SRS ERRARBEERER HRETNERF NERGHE SFRIT A NFCEFER
N HBERRINTA -

* New model launched in 2019

TR NFHE RS



Products Highlights (for reference only)
AT ER (EHE%E)

ANDROID SMART TABLET SOLUTION
ZREERFRERAR

General features:

—MRAFEL

Android tablet-based solution is designed for retail and hospitality industry. PCI PTS 5.x certified and
includes many advanced features such as HD in-plane switching display and touch screen, front facing
camera, QR reader, innovative contactless reader and biometric fingerprint reader.
ZERRETRBRTEERTERRBITEMR - ABPC PTS S.GRALE &)1 M BRI - 5l
ERGE CHBEINES AN IEE N ENS A IEAGENS -

IM SERIES UNATTENDED SOLUTION
IMZ 31| B By BR 5 3 3R 75 58

General features:

—MRAF R

Ideal for self-service sales points such as petrol stations, parking, kiosk. PCI PTS 5.x certified and has met
required standards for anti-vandalism and waterproofing. Various payment methods are accepted and
connectivity options include 3G, 4G, WiFi and Bluetooth.

RN B85 EETEZEEAS R - BBPCI PTS 5.xRE - HEMBRIBBMP KELE A
BEEENTAH A R3G 4G WIFifE 7F % @R E-

* New model launched in 2019

— LA R R R



Products Highlights (for reference only)
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CLASSIC E-PAYMENT SOLUTION
BRESFXNBRAR

i)

Countertop and Wireless E-payment Terminals
EARFHELEAEF LG

General features:

— MR

Accept smart card, magnetic stripe card and support credit cards, debit cards and a full range of
prepaid products, including gift cards and loyalty programs. Most of the models support QR code
application.

AENEER HMES UXRHEARN B RREZIEBENER BREERFREREE X
M RISR A SR — MRS R o

CLASSIC E-PAYMENT SOLUTION
EP s

RE T ERTE

=¥

ii)

Multilane Series
LI R

General features:

— AR

Sleek tablet design with large high resolution color screen, enabling high quality display to
showcase merchants’ advertising and campaigns.

FRABANTRES AR AeBRMTERCETS NeanENesRB 2R NP e E
EREH




Products Highlights (for reference only)
ABER (EHE%E)

CLASSIC E-PAYMENT SOLUTION
BRESFXNBRAR

ii)  mPOS Series

mPOS & 5|

General features: Lightweight and compact design, focusing on small and micro merchants. Support various kinds
of payment options, including bank card payment and NFC contactless.

— AR Em&st/NG - EHE - HEM N EPONFER AIXEERIN T A BERITH X RNFCIELE

PAXSTORE

Features:

ST

Ao

A secure cloud-based Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS"”) platform that allows you to create and manage
your own independent marketplace for software application distribution. It also provides an integrated

terminal management system platform and smart data analysis.
— (AL EHEBERTE([SaaS 1) F & AFEEIRLEREABEBLNRHERATIS R ©
RH—(ARRGEEERR T MEREE I T
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Corporate Information
ATEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming (Chairman)

LU Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
LI Wenjin

Independent Non-Executive Directors
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

CHEUNG Shi Yeung

CHAN Yiu Kwong

LAU Ling Yun Agnes (resigned with effect from 21 June 2019)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
LI Wenjin

CHEUNG Shi Yeung

CHAN Yiu Kwong (alternate)

BERMUDA RESIDENT REPRESENTATIVE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong Law
Reed Smith Richards Butler
Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

As to Bermuda Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman
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Corporate Information
ATEE

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 2416, 24th Floor

Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR IN BERMUDA
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Investor Services Ltd
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
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Simplified Corporate Chart
ATIREBEFE

The following is a simplified corporate chart of the Group’s principal operating subsidiaries up to the date of this report.

PAX Global Technology Limited
(Stock code: 327)
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Pax Technology Limited
(HK)

100%
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70%
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Directors and Senior Management
EFERERERE

As at 30 March 2020, the date of the Report of the Directors, the
biographical details of the directors (the "Director(s)”) and senior
management of PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) are as
follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming Chairman

Mr. Nie, aged 57, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company and the general manager of Pax Computer Technology
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“Pax Technology (Shenzhen)”). He is responsible
for the overall management and strategic development of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). Mr. Nie has over 20 years
of experience in the card payment industry. He joined Pax Technology
Limited (“Pax Technology”) at its founding in March 2000 as the vice
president until January 2001 and subsequently as the president prior
to his appointment as the chairman in June 2010. Mr. Nie previously
worked as an engineer in the Information Technology Department of
the Headquarters of China Merchants Bank in the People’'s Republic
of China (the “PRC") from 1996 to 1999. Mr. Nie graduated from
Tsinghua University in 1984 with a bachelor’s degree in Radio Electronics
and obtained a master’s degree in Radio Electronics Engineering from
Southeast University in 1991. He was appointed as the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company in December 2010.

LU lJie Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lu, aged 55, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
of the Company and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. He joined the Group in August 2001 and is responsible for
managing the business development, sales and marketing functions
of the Group. Mr. Lu has over 15 years of experience in sales and
marketing in the electronic payment industry and served a number of
management positions and executive role at Beijing Order Computer
Company (“Beijing Order”), a system integration company, from
1998 to 2001, including general manager of insurance department,
general manager of marketing department and vice president. He had
also worked as an engineer of the Ministry of Geology and Mineral
Resources of the PRC and the Chinese Academy of Geological Sciences
from 1986 to 1994 and from 1994 to 1995 respectively. Mr. Lu holds
a bachelor’s degree from Chengdu Geology Institute. He obtained an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from the Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in 2010. He was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company in
May 2013.

_6 ) PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Directors and Senior Management
EFERERERE

LI Wenjin

Mr. Li, aged 56, is an Executive Director of the Company and a director
in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for the
Company'’s risk management and treasury management and overseeing
operations of Pax Technology, of which he has been serving a director
since April 2000. Mr. Li has over 25 years of experience in investment
and administrative affairs. Mr. Li was the director of Hi Sun Information
Technology Services Limited (“HSITSL”) from August 1997 to May
2005, a Hong Kong company engaging in general trading and provision
of consultancy services. HSITSL provided consultancy services to Pax
Technology from 2002 to 2003. Mr. Li is also the managing director
of Hi Sun Limited since August 1999 and an executive director of Hi
Sun Technology (China) Limited (“Hi Sun”), a controlling shareholder
of the Company, since June 2001. He has also been appointed as an
executive director of both Hi Sun Limited and Hi Sun and certain of
their subsidiaries. Prior to joining Hi Sun Limited in 1999, he worked
for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong, including Beijing
Order from 1994 to 1995 where he was responsible for investment and
administrative affairs. Mr. Li obtained a master’s degree in laws from the
Peking University in 1989. He was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in February 2010.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

YIP Wai Ming

Mr. Yip, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Mr. Yip is currently an
independent non-executive director of Ju Teng International Holdings
Limited (E B BIBXIZ AR B R A A]), Far East Horizon Limited (& %

ZIEBM AT, Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited (4R F|321k
EEBEMHAER AR, Yida China Holdings Limited ({8 2 A B 4% f%

B R A R]) and Huobi Technology Holdings Limited (A ¥ &} 4% f%
BRRA7]), all of which are companies listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Yip graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in social
sciences in 1987. He also holds a bachelor’s degree in laws from the
University of London. Mr. Yip is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

WU Min

Dr. Wu, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Previously, Dr. Wu was an
assistant professor at The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology
Business School and The University of Hong Kong School of Business. Dr.
Wu has been teaching International Accounting Standards, US Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and Chinese Accounting Standards.
Her academic research achievements in identifying US accounting
restatements and frauds were reported by various media, including the
Wall Street Journal, New York Times, Business Week, Fortune, CNN, etc.
Dr. Wu used to cooperate with major accounting firms and the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (US) in conducting research in the
areas of accounting manipulation and frauds by US listed companies.
She also provides professional interpretation and analysis services for
investment funds on accounting standards and on listed companies’
financial statements. Dr. Wu graduated from Peking University with a
bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1994 and obtained a master’s degree
in Economics from Tufts University in 1996 and a Ph.D. in Accounting
from Stern School of Business, New York University in 2003.
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Directors and Senior Management
EFERERERE

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Mr. Man, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Mr. Man graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in laws in 1981.
Mr. Man was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1984 and has
practised as a solicitor at Joseph S. C. Chan & Co. (formerly known as
Chan and Lo) in Hong Kong since then. He is currently a partner of
Joseph S.C. Chan & Co.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LUO Shaowen

Mr. Luo, aged 51, is the executive vice president and chairman of
Pax Technology (Shenzhen). He is responsible for the research and
development management of the Company’s smart electronic payment
point-of-sale terminals (“E-payment Terminals”) products and supply
chain business (procurement production, quality management and
information technology) and oversees the finance of the operations in
Shenzhen. Mr. Luo graduated from Wuhan University with a bachelor’s
degree in economic management. Mr. Luo has over 20 years of
experience in the card payment industry and over 15 years of experience
in financial administration and supply chain management. He joined
Pax Technology (Shenzhen) in December 2004 as the chief financial
officer. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo served various management
positions in the Beijing Order and Beijing Hi Sun Electric Power
Information Technology Limited.

CHEUNG Shi Yeung

Mr. Cheung, aged 36, is the Chief Financial Officer and one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company (the “Company Secretary(ies)”).
He joined the Group in October 2016 and is responsible for overseeing
the business development, finance, compliance, merger and acquisition,
and investor relations of the Group. Mr. Cheung graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration and has over 10 years of financial and accounting related
experience. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung
worked for an international public accountancy firm and was involved
in a number of audit and assurance, capital market transaction and
advisory projects advising corporate clients including listed companies
and conglomerates worldwide.
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Chairman’s Statement
ERFHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of PAX Global
Technology Limited (“PAX" or “the Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review, the Group's turnover, profit for the year,
profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company and the
proposed final dividend have achieved record highs.

The Group's turnover amounted to HK$4,925.7 million in 2019,
representing an increase of 11.6% compared to HK$4,415.4 million
in 2018. The incline was mainly contributed by the huge increase of
21.3% in overseas markets. All regional overseas business recorded
growth, especially in the Asia Pacific Region (except for Mainland China)
("APAC") and Europe, Middle East and Africa ("EMEA"). The proportion
of the total revenue of the overseas markets over the Group's total was
91.9%, as compared to 84.5% in the corresponding period last year.

In 2019, profit for the year was HK$624.9 million, representing an
increase of 21.2% compared to HK$515.4 million in 2018. Profit for the
year attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$623.9 million,
representing an increase of 19.4% as compared to HK$522.5 million in
2018. Basic earnings per share for the year was 56.7 HK cents (2018:
47.5 HK cents).

The Board has recommended to declare a final dividend of HK$0.06
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing
an increase of 50% compared to HK$0.04 per ordinary share in
2018, amounting to a total of approximately HK$65,256,000 (2018:
HK$44,008,000) (assuming no change in the number of shares in issue
on or before the record date for determining the entitlement of final
dividend) subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
ERFHRE

OUTLOOK

The widespread adoption of electronic payment methods has become
a key national development strategy for governments worldwide.
The introduction of more convenient and efficient electronic payment
options has promoted a more and more common use of electronic
transaction among consumers, offering unprecedented opportunities
for the E-payment Terminals industry in both developed and emerging
markets. Taking advantage of global efforts to promote financial
inclusion, consumers and small and medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs"”)
that have not previously enjoyed financial services now can also benefit,
and this is in turn boosting the global demand for terminals with
security certifications and supporting mobile payments.

PAX adheres to a corporate culture of “pursuing excellence and
innovation” in the quest to develop the industry-leading E-payment
Terminals solutions roadmap. Today, the Group has footprints in more
than 100 countries around the world. According to the September 2019
issue of the Nilson Report, PAX was ranked as one of the top three
global E-payment Terminals solutions providers, marking PAX's efforts
have achieved high recognition among international markets. Overseas
markets have become the pillar of the Group’s business, accounting
for approximately 91.9% of total revenue. In 2019, PAX recorded a
significant revenue growth of 21.3% in overseas markets with a record
high shipment of over 8 million units.

In 2019, PAX strengthened its global strategic investments and achieved
important breakthroughs in multiple markets worldwide. In the Latin
America and Commonwealth of Independent States region (“LACIS"),
PAX maintained its market-leading position. In view of promising
business prospects of acquirers in Brazil, PAX established further
strategic partnerships with acquirers and enriched the local Android
product portfolio.

In EMEA, Android SmartPOS and SmartECR solutions with integrated
PAXSTORE payment service platform, received widespread recognition
and high market demand. PAX has also added strength to its
existing extensive spectrum of international software and hardware
certifications, by obtaining ITSO certification from the Integrated
Transport Smartcard Organization in the United Kingdom and ATEX
certification from the European Union for terminal usage on petroleum
forecourts.

In APAC, the Group's subsidiaries established in India and Japan in
recent years have successfully penetrated these markets shortly. PAX's
Android terminals have been highly recognized in India, Indonesia,
Malaysia and many other countries.
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Chairman’s Statement
ERFHRE

In the United States, more local mainstream acquirers and processors
have certified our Android smart products, increasing notable chain
stores, Independent Sales Organizations (“I1SOs”) and merchants entered
into strategic partnerships with the Group. Furthermore, the Group
obtained certifications from Verizon and AT&T, the two nationwide
telecommunications companies in the United States, propelling further
market expansion and enhancing further brand recognition for PAX in
the local market.

In China, electronic payment continues to grow, mobile payment
applications become more popular. In face of further intensified market
competition, the Group continued to adopt a flexible approach to adjust
the business strategy and actively undergo the structural adjustment of
China business.

The global demand has been shifting from legacy payment terminal
systems (based on either proprietary or Linux operating systems) to
more modern Android payment terminal platform. PAX's innovative
Android smart payment terminal portfolio continues to satisfy the
requirements of payment service providers and their merchants for
diversified and more personalized payment solutions. PAX solutions not
only embrace alternative innovative payment methods, such as QR code
("Quick Response”) payments and NFC (“Near Field Communications”)
payments, but are also connected to the PAXSTORE platform, a state-
of-the-art advanced terminal management system with appstore
functionalities, providing numerous innovative value-added applications.
The revolutionary features are redefining how acquirers offer payment
services to merchants, as well as significantly improving the in-store
transactional experience for consumers. In just two years, PAX's Android
solutions have been widely recognized by leading banks and payment
service providers worldwide.

Alternative payment options have not only revolutionized the traditional
payment landscape of retail chains, restaurants and supermarkets, but
are also influencing the unattended payment sector. In the second
half of 2019, PAX launched an Android-based integrated self-service
payment product, the IM30, which supports PIN-on-Glass and multiple
payment functionalities. The elegant yet ruggedized design is suitable
for a variety of indoor and outdoor self-service environments. PAX
has also recently introduced the SmartKiosk series of intelligent self-
service vending machines with integrated payment features and large
touch screen displays, which enables self-service ordering, ticketing and
payment at fast food chains, cinemas and government offices.

Looking ahead, the prospect of the E-payment Terminals market is
promising. The Group will keep pace with technological developments
and changing market demand, while continuing to develop innovative
solutions for customers worldwide. Capitalizing on our diversified
solutions portfolio and extensive global sales network, PAX is more than
well prepared to embrace the huge market opportunities presented by
an increasingly cashless society, achieving more remarkable milestones
and creating greater value for customers and shareholders alike.
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Chairman’s Statement
ERFHRE

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of the coronavirus disease has
shocked across the globe. Health and safety have become the universal
aspirations. Taking the health of staff as the priority, the Group has
set up an Epidemic Prevention and Control Committee to respond
and strengthen the preventive and control measures in all offices, in
response to different global conditions. Undoubtedly, the outbreak
will pose a short-term impact on the Group's operation and financial
performance. However, together with the joint efforts of our customers,
business partners, suppliers and employees worldwide, we are confident
that this will not constitute a significant impact to business in the long
run.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my utmost gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers, business
associates and the most valued shareholders for their continuing trust
and support for the Group, and to our directors, management and staff
for their commitment and valuable contribution in 2019.

Nie Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7 Bl B8
The key financial figures are extracted as follows: FEMBEBERHmENT
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEFE
2019 2018
—E-AFE —ZE)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT +/(-)
Revenue WA 4,925,733 4,415,409 +11.6%
Gross profit EH 1,944,833 1,626,681 +19.6%
Other income H A A 79,056 76,929 +2.8%
Selling expenses HERY (465,657)  (437,809) +6.4%
Administrative expenses 1THEH (743,466) (590,819) +25.8%
Net impairment losses on financial assets SREEZREFER (65,914) (43,290) +52.3%
Profit before income tax Bx BT 15 B A & A 754,673 632,742 +19.3%
Income tax expense FriS i = (129,809)  (117,344) +10.6%
Profit for the year FEaF 624,864 515,398 +21.2%
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company 72 A # B A FE {535 H) 623,873 522,470 +19.4%
Research and development costs (included in MERAS (BEETH
administrative expenses) ZE2HNAN) (398,759)  (332,016) +20.1%
Share-based payment expenses (included in BHEZHER(BEE
selling and administrative expenses) HERX RITHERA) (38,686) - N/ATEH
Key financial information excluding FEUBER (FEERS
share-based payment expenses XHER)
Profit for the year FEmR A 663,550 515,398 +28.7%
Profit attributable to the owners of RAREE ARG R
the Company 662,559 522,470 +26.8%
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-AFE —ZE)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT +/(-)
Total current assets MEBEERE 6,196,703 5,343,736 +16.0%
Total non-current assets ERBEELREAE 522,520 431,818 +21.0%
Total assets BERE 6,719,223 5,775,554 +16.3%
Total current liabilities MEBERRE 1,875,654 1,540,982 +21.7%
Total non-current liabilities FERBABRRE 104,217 21,964  +374.5%
Total liabilities BEAR 1,979,871 1,562,946 +26.7%
Net current assets RBEEFE 4,321,049 3,802,754 +13.6%
Total equity Ry e 4,739,352 4,212,608 +12.5%
BERRRBFEBRAT « —Z—NFFRH
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1T-HLFE

2019 2018
—E-AE —ZT—N\F +(-)
PER SHARE (IN HKS$) BsrR (Bx)
Earnings per share for the profit attributable ZAY/NCIES PN
to the owners of the Company i ) 8 5 AR 2 A
— Basic —ER 0.567 0.475 +19.4%
~ Diluted —#8 0.567 0.475 +19.4%
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HLFE
2019 2018
—E-hF ZZET-N\F
FINANCIAL RATIOS Mgt =%
Gross profit margin FEF = 39.5% 36.8%
Net profit margin bERINE RS 12.7% 11.7%
Net profit margin (excluding share-based FFE
payment expenses) (TERERNEZFNER) 13.5% 1.7%

Revenue

Turnover increased by 11.6% or HK$510.3 million to HK$4,925.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from HK$4,415.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 mainly due to the increase in
turnover generated from overseas markets.

i)  Sales by Geographical Region

2019
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For the year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—-HLFE
2019 2018

—E-hF ZZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET +/(-)
Overseas markets BN
— Latin America and the Commonwealth — —$7 T 35 175 B A
of Independent States ("LACIS") (fLacis 1) 2,514,700 2,408,613 +4.4%
— Europe, Middle East and Africa —BOM ~ # R K IEIN
("EMEA") (TEMEA ]) 927,562 680,387 +36.3%
— Asia Pacific Region —DKRE (B EIKRFEESN)
(Except for Mainland China) (“APAC") (TAPAC ]) 740,373 380,990 +94.3%
— United States of America and —EFEmE X
Canada ("USCA") (Tuscal) 345,974 262,302 +31.9%
4,528,609 3,732,292 +21.3%
China Market F TS 397,124 683,117 -41.9%
Total 4A%EE 4,925,733 4,415,409 +11.6%

Turnover generated from overseas markets increased by 21.3%
to HK$4,528.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
from HK$3,732.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Turnover generated from overseas markets accounted for 91.9%
of total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019, growing
from 84.5% for the year ended 31 December 2018. All overseas
business units recorded growth, especially the APAC and EMEA
region. The increase was mainly driven by the increase in market
penetration and sales of Android terminals. Turnover generated
from the China Market decreased by 41.9% to HK$397.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019, from HK$683.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was mainly
due to the continuously keen price competition and shifting of
the Group's overall strategy to focus more on serving strong and
reputable customers.

REBITEMEEFTREE_ZT—N
F+ A=+ —HLEFEM373238E
BN 3% EHE—_FT—NLF+A
:+ HIFFERA5286ES BT -HE

—NFE+-—A=+—81t ' 8W5E
M%ﬁﬁ@%%ﬁi@i_y NF+=
B=4+—HILFE84.5%ERZEIII%
HING D B EBIERBIER - FFRIRAPAC
MEMEAM @ - EE R FERATH LS
ERLEEFIMEIREERF -KRAF
BEmEMEETEREE_ZS—\F+=
A=+—BHLHEMN683.1E8E BT %
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ii)
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Sales by Product Category

ii))

BREmDBENHER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-ZA=+—BLEE

2019 2018

—E-hE ZT)N\F

HKS$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET +/(-)
E-payment Terminals products BEF X EIREM 4,837,042 4,331,207 +11.7%
Services B #& 88,691 84,202 +5.3%
Total BE 4,925,733 4,415,409 +11.6%

E-payment Terminals products EFXfRmER

E-payment Terminals products include smart E-payment Terminals,
all-in-one smart electronic cash register solution, traditional
E-payment Terminals, mobile E-payment Terminals, QR code
E-payment Terminals and other accessory items.

Turnover from the sales of E-payment Terminals products increased
by 11.7% to HK$4,837.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 from HK$4,331.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2018. The growth is attributed to the increase in sales in the
overseas markets during the year.

Services

Services income consists of income generated from the provision
of maintenance and installation services. Turnover from services
increased by 5.3% to HK$88.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 from HK$84.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. Maintenance and installation services income
was generated in Hong Kong and Italy.
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Gross Profit Margin
Gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2019 was 39.5%,
representing an increase in 270 basis points as compared to 36.8% for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The increase was mainly driven by
the change in sales mix.

Other Income

Other income comprises primarily value-added tax refund, interest
income from time deposit and subsidy income. It increased by 2.8% to
HK$79.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from HK$76.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, due to the increase in
interest income and subsidy income.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses increased by 6.4% to HK$465.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from HK$437.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Selling expenses grew generally in line with the
turnover growth.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 25.8% to HK$743.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 from HK$590.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018. The increase was mainly due to the
recognition of share-based payment expenses during the year and the
increase in research and development (“R&D") expenses.

Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

The Group has recognised a provision for net impairment of receivables
of HK$65.9 million and HK$43.3 million for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 respectively, mainly in relation to the trade
receivables of certain customers in China and a customer in APAC.
Detail is set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Profit for the Year and Profit Attributable to the Owners of

the Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year was HK$624.9 million,
representing an increase of 21.2% compared to HK$515.4 million
in 2018. Profit for the year excluding share-based payment expenses
was HK$663.6 million, increased by 28.7% or HK$148.2 million, as
compared to last year.

In 2019, profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
was HK$623.9 million, representing an increase of 19.4% as compared
to HK$522.5 million in 2018. Profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company excluding share-based payment expenses
was HK$662.6 million, increased by 26.8% or HK$140.1 million, as
compared to last year.
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Other Event

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 16
November 2017, the relevant disclosure in the Company’s 2017 and
2018 annual reports and 2018 and 2019 interim reports concerning
Shanghai New Kashuo Information Technology Company Limited
(“Shanghai Kashuo”) and its subsidiaries.

In July 2018, a court of competent jurisdiction in Shanghai rendered
a civil ruling in acceptance of Shanghai Kashuo's application for
bankruptcy liquidation in accordance with the Enterprise Bankruptcy
Law of the People’'s Republic of China. As at 31 December 2019, the
liquidation process of Shanghai Kashuo was still underway. Should
Shanghai Kashuo liquidate, the Group is expected to recognise a
potential gain of up to approximately HK$60 million in reversal of its
existing liabilities.

OVERVIEW

As electronic payment technologies become more mature and
popularize worldwide, financial inclusion has been prioritized as
key social and economic agenda by governments around the world,
accelerating the global move towards cashless society. According to the
World Payments Report published in 2019, global non-cash transaction
volume is growing rapidly and is expected to reach USD1,046 billion in
2022, representing a compound annual growth rate of 14%. Emerging
markets in Asia, Latin America, the Middle East and Africa are now
leading the growth of electronic payments.

Many emerging countries, which previously did not have an established
financial system, are now leap-frogging conventional financial
infrastructures into a large-scale deployment of mobile payment
systems. While electronic payment methods continue to evolve,
consumers are gradually developing payment preferences and expect
more convenient, personalized and interactive payment experience.
These trends are influencing the operating strategies of acquiring banks
and payment service providers, as well as the huge global merchants
they serve. In an effort to deliver a seamless payment experience,
merchants are looking for ways to embrace more diversified payment
methods and upgrade to more advanced E-payment Terminals.

PAX stands at the forefront of the electronic payment value chain and
is committed to continuously enriching the Group’s comprehensive
and innovative product portfolio through R&D and innovation. The
new generation of Android smart terminals (SmartPOS), intelligent
management and integrated payment terminals (SmartECR) and smart
self-service products (SmartKiosk) offer revolutionary solutions to
customers worldwide with highly flexible and customized software to
deliver unprecedented user-experience in the payment terminal industry.
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PAX's Android smart terminal solutions fulfill merchant demands
for new and alternative payment options, such as Near Field
Communication (NFC) and QR codes, connecting to the industry-leading
cloud-based PAXSTORE platform, an advanced terminal management
system with a huge portfolio of innovative value-added applications. The
combination of the Group’s new-generation products with PAXSTORE
enables customers to achieve superior modern terminal system
management, customer relationships and data analysis. In 2019, the
Group's revenue from our flagship Android smart terminals continued to
rise, fueling robust growth of the Group.

OVERSEAS MARKETS

LACIS

In Latin America and the CIS countries (the latter includes Russia and
the Commonwealth of Independent States), the Group recorded steady
revenue growth. According to the Nilson Report, PAX ranks first in Latin
America in terms of shipments. In Brazil, which remains the Group's
most significant market, the acquiring business of local merchant
acquirers continues to boom and PAX has entered into strategic
partnerships with an even larger number of acquiring organizations.
According to the Brazilian Association of Credit Card Companies and
Services (“ABECS”), the Brazilian consumer bank card payment ratio
is expected to increase to 60% by 2022 and is driving strong demand
for payment terminal products. The Group remains optimistic about
the prospects of its Brazilian business. In addition to maintaining a
solid leadership position in the local mobile and traditional payment
terminal solutions markets, PAX has also enriched its new-generation
of smart Android products lines in Brazil. The latest Android smart
terminals A930 and A50 are gaining significant market traction. PAX's
strong brand recognition in Brazil is generating positive knock-on effects
in other key countries, such as Mexico and Argentina, where PAX is
capturing increasing market share.

EMEA

In Europe, PAX achieved robust sales growth with a significant growth
of terminal volume deployed in Italy, the United Kingdom, Germany,
etc. More and more payment service providers and acquiring banks are
affirming the competitive advantages brought by PAX's new-generation
Android SmartPOS and SmartECR solutions, as well as the flexible
PAXSTORE platform.
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In 2019, we achieved two more important European certifications
including the ITSO certification granted by the Integrated Transport
Smartcard Organization in the United Kingdom, and the ATEX
certification of the European Union’s directive to ensure the safety of
products in explosive environments such as petroleum forecourts, laying
an ever-stronger foundation for PAX's E-payment Terminals growth
across Europe.

PAX also continued to achieve significant large-volume sales in North
and West Africa, where government incentive programs are boosting
the development of financial inclusion. In the GCC region (Gulf
Cooperation Council countries), demand for PAX's new Android-based
solutions has been growing across acquiring banks.

APAC

Asia Pacific is one of the most dynamic regions when it comes to
electronic payments, with major payment institutions devoted to
promoting cashless payment societies. In view of the growth potential
of the Asia Pacific region, the Group established subsidiaries in Japan
and India in 2017 and 2018 respectively. Riding on PAX's global brand
recognition and high-quality products, PAX worked hand-in-hand with
renowned local acquiring banks and institutions and expanded to India
and Japan expeditiously. During the year, PAX’s Android E-payment
Terminals series were widely deployed in many countries of the region,
including India, Indonesia and Malaysia. The Group not only covers the
mainstream acquiring banks and institutions in various APAC countries,
but has also been selected as one of the main Android product suppliers
by many regional acquiring institutions, electronic wallet companies and
value-added service companies.

Driven by the Reserve Bank of India’s national vision for a cashless
society and wider smartphone penetration, India’s electronic payments
market has been growing at a rapid pace, with a compound annual
growth rate of 12.7% for non-cash transactions. In 2019, PAX's sales
in India achieved a high growth momentum, with annual shipments
exceeding 600,000 units, positioning the Group as the leading supplier
in India.

The promotion of electronic payments by the Payments Japan
Association fueled the rapid growth of PAX in Japan. As the country
prepares for the upcoming Tokyo Olympics and the 2025 Osaka World
Expo, electronic payments are expected to grow further while the
Japanese government expects to boost the cashless payment ratio
to 40% by 2025. Driven by the robust development of the cashless
payment environment in Japan, the market demand for the Group's
electronic terminals will be on the rise.
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USCA

According to the Nilson Report, the purchase volume of payment
cards in the USA is projected to grow from USD7.3 trillion in 2018 to
USD10.1 trillion in 2023, representing a significant increase of 38.8%.
The Group expanded its market share and achieved considerable
growth in 2019. As the first supplier to launch Android smart terminal
solutions in the USCA region, more mainstream acquirers entering into
strategic cooperation with the Group to deploy PAX's new-generation
terminals through their nationwide networks of ISOs (Independent
Sales Organizations). In 2019, PAX launched innovative pay-at-the-
table solutions for the restaurant and hospitality sector. The best-in-class
quality of PAX products and software solutions are widely recognized by
major acquiring banks, payment service providers and merchants in the
North America.

In 2019, the Group devoted more resources to accelerate product R&D
in the North American region and obtained important certifications with
Verizon and AT&T, the two nationwide telecommunications companies
in the United States, spurring a strong growth momentum for the
Group's expansion. The EMV liability shift for gas pump will take effect
on October 1, 2020 as planned. As the EMV migration of self-service
terminals at gas stations in the United States is expected to accelerate
in 2020, the Group believes that this will help stimulate market demand
for PAX E-payment Terminals solutions.

China Market

In view of the economic uncertainties in China, intensifying market
competition and increasing credit risk of certain customer segments,
the Group adjusted its strategic and structural approach in the China
market in 2019 through operating costs optimization and focusing
on serving more reputable and strong customers. This approach has
brought positive impact on the Group’s operating costs. PAX will
continue to strengthen its strategic partnerships with leading acquiring
banks and payment service providers in China, as well as, strengthen
the risk assessment and management procedures of the China business.
PAX believes that it will improve the Group's overall profitability to bring
benefits to shareholders in the long run.

Management Strategy

Propelled by the widespread adoption of electronic payment methods,
financial inclusion has become a key national development strategy
for governments worldwide. The introduction of more convenient and
efficient electronic payment options has promoted more and more
common use of electronic transaction among consumers, offering
unprecedented opportunities for the E-payment Terminals industry in
both developed and emerging markets. PAX will continue to uphold two
key corporate strategies.
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Focus on product innovation and R&D to develop diversified
and high-quality E-payment solutions

PAX adheres to its corporate culture of pursuing excellence and
innovation with a focus on new generation Android series. The
flagship SmartPOS, SmartECR and SmartKiosk series have been widely
recognized around the world as best-in-class integrated payment
solutions and are expected to become the Group’s main growth engine
going forward.

The cloud-based payment service ecosystem known as PAXSTORE is in
high demand, running in over 80 countries by the end of 2019. The
PAXSTORE team is now focusing on establishing closer partnerships with
third party ISVs (Independent Software Vendors) all over the world to
build a one-stop payment ecosystem, unlocking a whole new world of
marketing and payment services for banks, payment service providers,
merchants and consumers alike.

Strengthen the global sales network to further enhance
PAX’s market penetration internationally

PAX will capitalise on its global reach advantage to strengthen closer
partnerships with channel partners, acquiring banks, payment service
providers and merchants to expand our market share and explore
potential new markets. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to
explore merger and acquisition opportunities and other investment
projects which offer good prospects in the payment sector. With a
view to further capturing global market share and enhancing the
competitiveness, the Group will continue to expand diversified solutions
and innovative payment-related technologies.

At the beginning of 2020, the new coronavirus spread across the world.
The Group has promptly set up an Epidemic Prevention and Control
Committee to strengthen the preventive and control measures in all
offices around the world to ensure the health and safety of employees.
To minimize the negative impact of the outbreak to the Group, we will
endeavor to fulfill the committed sales orders and liaise with customers
about any necessary adjustment to the delivery schedule. The outbreak
is expected to have a short-term impact on the Group’s operation and
financial performance, but not in the long run. The Group will closely
monitor the market conditions and continue to assess the impact of the
outbreak on PAX's operations and financial performance.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the years of 2019 and 2018, the main source of funding to
the Group was the proceeds generated from operating activities in the
Group's usual course of business. Certain financial data is summarised
as follows:
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As at 31 December

R+=-—HA=+—8
2019 2018
—E-hF ZZT-N\F
Current ratio (times) MBI E (F) 3.3 3.5
Quick ratio (times) RENELE (F) 2.6 2.7
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
and short-term bank deposits in an aggregate amount of HK$3,233.0
million (2018: HK$2,162.7 million) and borrowings of HK$2.3 million
(2018: HK$8.2 million). As at 31 December 2019, the Group reported
net current assets of HK$4,321.0 million, as compared with HK$3,802.8
million as at 31 December 2018. For the year ended 31 December
2019, net cash generated from operating activities was HK$1,206.9
million, as compared with HK$198.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The gearing ratio (defined as total debt divided by total
capital) was 0.05% as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 0.2%). The gearing
ratio is considered healthy and suitable for the continuous growth of the
Group's business.

Capital Structure and Details of Charges

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had borrowings of HK$2.3 million
(2018: HK$8.2 million) and no banking facilities (2018: HK$11.9
million). The borrowings were used in the operation in Korea and
denominated in Korean Won (“WON"). All borrowings were unsecured
(2018: HK$8.2 million being secured by the land and buildings of a
Korean subsidiary of the Company).

Approximately HK$2,095.4 million, HK$973.7 million, HK$73.0
million, HK$34.4 million, HK$23.7 million and HK$29.8 million (2018:
HK$1,385.2 million, HK$537.4 million, HK$57.8 million, HK$169.6
million, HK$6.2 million and HK$4.0 million) of the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents were denominated in RMB, US dollar ("US$"),
European dollar (“EUR"), Hong Kong dollar ("HK$"), Indian Rupee
("INR™) and other currencies respectively as at 31 December 2019.

Significant Investment
The Group had no significant investment as at 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil).

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets
There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Exchange Rates Exposure

The Group derives its turnover, makes purchases and incurs expenses
denominated mainly in RMB, HK$, US$, EUR and INR. The majority of
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$, US$, EUR and INR
and there are no significant assets and liabilities that are denominated in
other currencies. Currently, the Group has not entered into agreements
or purchased instruments to hedge the Group's exchange rate risks. Any
material fluctuation in the exchange rates of HK$ or RMB may have an
impact on the operating results of the Group.
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The management considers that the foreign exchange risk with respect
to US$ is not significant as HK$ is pegged to US$ and transactions
denominated in US$ are mainly carried out by entities with the same
functional currency. The Group manages foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

Human Resources and Remuneration Policies

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2019
was 1,699. The following table shows a breakdown of employees of
the Group by functions as at 31 December 2019:

MRABTTEETHSE BUETAENRSE
EMHRAERNEESENERETT HEEE
RRBRZTAEBNIIERRY TEKR NEHE
FUEREXZEE NERIIEER-

FREE

AEER-_Z-NF+ A=+ —HULEEM
BEAFABB(ZZE-N\F E)-

AN ER R H B B R

RN-ZE-—HhE+-_A=+—H Kc&EEREE#HE
HAE1,69A - TRHINK -_ZE—NLF+=A
—t+—HREREI S NS HEEESE

Management BIEE 13
Sales and after-sales services and marketing HEREERBARTSHE 417
Research and development it 2% 871
Quality assurance X 41
Administration and human resources T REANEIR 44
Accounting g5 35
Production, procurement and inventory control EE-RERFEES 278

1,699

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are comprehensive
and competitive from time to time. Employees are remunerated with
fixed monthly income plus annual performance related bonuses. Share
options are granted to certain employees of the Group to reward their
contributions under share option schemes, details of which are set
out in the Report of the Directors. The Group also sponsors selected
employees to attend external training courses that suit the needs of the
Group's business.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) measures, such as
key financial information excluding share-based payment expenses, are used for
assessing the Group's performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly
permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not be comparable
to similarly titled measures for other companies. Accordingly, such non-GAAP
measures should not be considered as an alternative to operating income as an
indicator of the operating performance of the Group or as an alternative to cash
flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP
measures is provided solely to enhance the overall understanding of the Group
current financial performance. Additionally because the Group has historically
reported certain non-GAAP results to investors, the Group considers the inclusion
of non-GAAP measures provides consistency in our financial reporting.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREGHRSE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of the Board in
ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company, transparency
and accountability of all aspects of operations and that its business is
conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

In formulating and implementing its corporate governance practices,
the Company has applied the Principles and complied with all applicable
Code Provisions for the year.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance or compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and employees’ compliance manual to ensure
that the Group’s operations are conducted in accordance with the
standards of the CG Code and applicable disclosure requirements.
Directors and senior management are provided with appropriate
ongoing training, continuing professional development for regular
updates of the legal and regulatory requirements relevant to their
duties.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a written code regulating the securities
transaction of Directors and executive officers named in this annual
report, on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all Directors and they have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year and
up to the date of this annual report.
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The Company has also established written guidelines regulating the
transactions of securities of the Company by senior management and
employees who are likely to be in possession of any inside information
of the Company.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors make
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board reserves its powers over decision of all major matters which
include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve
conflict of interests of substantial shareholder(s) or Director(s)), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board papers
and relevant information, as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary(ies), with a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

Upon request to the Board, each Director may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist with the
discharge of his/her duties as a director at the Company’s expense.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions as
to the powers, scope of delegation and relevant arrangements were
given to the senior management and subject to periodic review to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Reporting to the Board and prior approval of the Board are necessary
before the senior management entering into any material transactions

and assuming significant commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities.
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Composition
The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspective
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Group.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members upholds the effective exercise of independent judgement of
the Board.

The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

NIE Guoming (Chairman)

LU Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
LI Wenijin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

An updated list of Directors (by category) identifying their role and
function is maintained on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s
websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
between the members of the Board, in particular, between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive, if any, are provided in the “Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures, subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and re-election at annual general
meeting and the key terms and conditions of their appointment are set
out in formal letters of appointment.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 23 May 2019
for Mr. Lu Jie and 1 December 2019 for Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li
Wenijin, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of
the respective service contracts.
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Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive induction on the occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the business and operations of the Company and is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under applicable laws, rules and regulations and the
Group's various governance and internal control policies. The Company
also, at its expense, arranges and provides suitable training, placing
an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings for Directors

EEEI
TLZTEFREZIRESHEBN G BRIE
METHRARNABRELEE 2| THRAR
EARAEZE RERERUERASESEET AR
WEPEIEB R THRBE - ltoh AR AN E B3
FTHRAREENAE D kBENEENSL
RBHRSEANIE -

ARREEBEREF2EFEZRUR AT
REEHBEENMIELTE - ARBDEBE

TEEMH e RERBIENRESLHRE

in the form of physical seminar and provision of training materials. A BjJWuBim Al RIFEERMNLE EFNEE
summary of training received by the Directors during the year ended 31 —NF+ZA=+—HILEFEEZNEI
December 2019 according to the records as provided by the Directors is ﬂ?&xﬁﬂ—l— :
as follows:
Training on
regulatory updates,
corporate governance,
inside information or
Name of Directors other relevant topics
EREH CEER
W%/EJEJZ
EEpnE H i EEE A
Executive Directors BITES
Nie Guoming 7 B B v
Lu Jie B A 4
Li Wenijin E¢ v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHTES
Yip Wai Ming ESiAiE v
Wu Min R & 4
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles X e v
During the year, the Company Secretaries received no less than 15 hours F A R MEEES L5/ ENHERR
of relevant professional training to update their skills and knowledge. B AR H Bge R A -

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage
in respect of legal action against the Directors and officers of the
Group against losses or liabilities sustained or incurred arising from
or incidental to execution of their duties. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis or any intervals as deemed appropriate by
the Board.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year, four regular Board meetings were held at approximately
quarterly intervals for, among others, reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, the final results for the year ended
31 December 2018, quarterly results for the three months ended 31
March 2019, interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2019 and
results for the nine months ended 30 September 2019, and considering,
reviewing and/or approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company.

The attendance of individual Directors at the four regular quarterly
Board meetings (not including other ad hoc Board meetings held
from time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of the Board
in compliance with the CG Code), committee meetings and general
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

EZSEBRESHERR
FANBFECRTHORESAESTS S
N(ERBRE)EFMMEMBREERR &
2T - \F+_RA=+—BHLFENZEF

¥E - HE-_Z—NWEFE=A=1+—HBIL=M@A
MEE%E4E BE-_ET—HhLEAA=THILEAX
HAANPEHEENEE T LENA=1H

IENERMESE  ARER B R IHER
N BB R BUR

BEENBE_FT-NAFT+-_A=+T—"HLF
BEhERNETREFEEEE SR (TEEEM
THRETHIEHNEEEEBZAREBELEER
SRAMEFEXNENEAEGLER) ZEES
& MBRRAENHFECEFINMT

Attendance/Number of Meetings”

EBEME/BTRE
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Regular
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Board General
Meetings Meeting Meeting Meetings* Meeting
ENZEE [ERZEE® FHZEgE EHRESY
Name of Directors EENE 8% 6 =] =6 o REKRE
Nie Guoming LBl N/A 138 N/A i N/A 138 4/4 11
Lu Jie EA NATER  NATEAR  NATER 4/4 17
Li Wenjin EYE N/A iR " " 4/4 "
Yip Wai Ming EiEH 22 1/1 11 4/4 11
Wu Min R 2/2 11 11 4/4 11
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles X 22 NATER  NATER 4/4 17
o Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone or through other 2 REAR NEMAI([ARMAA]) EE
means of video conference in accordance with the Bye-laws (“Bye-laws”) T?ﬁ% iﬁ%ﬂ S Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁf?ﬁ EAAHEEE
of the Company. o
* Pursuant to the Bye-laws, not all Directors were required to attend the — * BIBEATHA WHLEESHELEFEIZR

rest of the Board meetings which mainly dealt with the consideration and
approval of ordinary business transactions.

During the year, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors.
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Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings have been served to all Directors at
least fourteen days in advance and relevant agenda and accompanying
board papers have been disseminated to the Directors within reasonable
time before the meeting. Reasonable notice, as permitted by the Bye-
laws of the Company under relevant circumstances or otherwise agreed,
has been given for other Board and committee meetings.

The Company Secretary(ies), as delegated by the Chairman, are
responsible for preparing the agendas of board meetings, taking into
account any matters the Directors may propose to include, ensuring that
all Directors are given opportunity to include matters in the agendas
and approving the agendas. In order to enable the Directors to make
informed decision, agendas and accompanying board papers, together
with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all
Directors or all committees members at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised
of the latest developments and/or financial position of the Company.
The Board and the individual Directors also have independent access to
the senior management to make further enquires or when they require
further information, in addition to those volunteered by the senior
management.

The Company Secretary(ies) attended all regular Board meetings and,
when necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on,
among others, statutory compliance, corporate governance matters and
to ensure that the Company’s policies and procedures were properly
followed.

The Company Secretary(ies) is responsible for preparing and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
recorded sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed, if any. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
records within a reasonable time after each meeting. The final version
is kept by the Company Secretary(ies) and open for the Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction or matter
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or a
Director, are dealt with by a duly convened physical Board meeting, at
which independent non-executive Directors having no material interest
in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any of their close
associates having material interests in the transaction or matter shall
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving such transactions.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles and responsibilities of Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Lu Jie
respectively as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company (the "CEQ") have been clearly divided and defined. The
clear division of the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of business ensures a balanced power and authority such
that no concentration of power should vest in any one individual.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practices and establishes corporate governance procedures. With the
assistance and support of the Company Secretary(ies) and the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive in a timely manner adequate information, which must
be accurate, clear, complete and reliable, and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings, and that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board’s affairs, taking the lead to assure that the
Board acts in the best interests of the Company. The Chairman also
promotes a culture to facilitate effective contribution and encourages
the Directors to express dissenting views and concerns and allow
sufficient discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The CEO focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s
day-to-day management and operations and is also responsible for
developing strategic plans, formulating and reviewing the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board's approval.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors possess a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and, through participation
in board meetings, offer independent judgement on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts. Through taking the lead where potential conflicts
of interests arise, serving on the Board committees, examining the
Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives
and monitoring performance reporting, the independent non-executive
Directors has become an integral part of the healthy growth of the
Company.

During the year, the independent non-executive Directors also attended
the annual general meeting of the Company, details of which are set
out on page 29, enabling them to develop a balanced understanding of
the views of the shareholders.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Wai
Ming, Dr. Wu Min and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles, was appointed
for a contractual term of one year subject to renewal on a yearly
basis and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws. Such term shall
be terminated: (i) by either party giving the other not less than two
months’ written notice; (ii) forthwith without compensation, on ground
of disqualification, gross or willful misconduct or negligence of such
Director, or (iii) any failure of passing a resolution by the shareholders to
be re-elected as a Director, whichever is earlier.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board at all times met
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors, representing half of the Board and with
at least one of the independent non-executive Directors possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company confirms that it has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director concerning his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all
independent non-executive Directors are considered independent in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing specific aspects of the Company's affairs.
Each Board committee was established with defined written terms
of reference setting out its authorities and duties and requiring the
Board Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations (unless otherwise restricted by applicable legal
or regulatory requirements). To provide transparency, the terms
of reference of the Board committees are made available on the
Company's and the Stock Exchange’s websites and hard copies of the
same are available to the Shareholders upon request.

Each Board committee consists of a majority of independent non-
executive Directors and is respectively chaired by an independent non-
executive Director. Chairman and members of each Board committee as
at the date of this report are set out below:

Audit Committee

AYIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
AWU Min

*MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Nomination Committee
WU Min (Chairman)
AYIP Wai Ming

*LI Wenjin

Remuneration Committee
AYIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
AWU Min

*LI Wenjin

s Independent non-executive Director
* Executive Director

The Board committees have been provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 1 December
2010. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors (including at least one member possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee
is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include, among others, the
followings:

(@)  to review the financial statements, reports, accounting policies and
practices and consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or external auditor before
submission to the Board;

(b)  to review the Company's relationship with the external auditor
with reference to its work performed, fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and, if appropriate, removal of
external auditor;

(©) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, audit process, the Group’s financial
control, internal control and risk management systems, including
but not limited to adequacy of resources available to its respective
functions, staff qualifications and experience and training
programmes; and

(d) to consider and identify risks of the Group and consider
effectiveness of the Group’s decision making processes in crisis
and emergency situations and approve major decisions affecting
the Group's risk profile or exposure.

The written terms of reference describing the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted with reference to
the CG Code, the “Principles of Auditor Independence and the Role
of Corporate Governance in Monitoring an Auditor’'s Independence”
issued by the Technical Committee of the International Organization of
Securities Commissions and “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2019 to review the half-yearly and annual financial results
and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control and risk management systems, effectiveness of internal audit
function, the auditor’s independence and objectivity. Full minutes of the
meetings are duly kept by the Company Secretary(ies) and draft and
final versions of the same have been sent to all committee members for
comment and records, within reasonable time afterwards in accordance
with the relevant Code Provisions. The Audit Committee also met with
the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, twice during the
year and recommended its re-appointment as the Company’s external
auditor to the Board, which has taken no different view in respect of the
Audit Committee’s recommendation.

At the end of 2019 and the date of this report, there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010 and comprises two independent non-executive
Directors (one of whom being the chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and one executive Director. Its terms of reference was
prepared and adopted with reference to the CG Code and its principal
duties include the review of the structure, size and composition of the
Board, developing and formulating relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships based on the balance of
expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of such individuals, business requirements of
the Group and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
External recruitment agency may also be engaged to carry out the
recruitment and selection process when necessary. It has been an
underpinning philosophy of the Company to maintain diversified
selection criteria in its hiring process, taking into account a wide range
of attributes including age, educational background, professional
experience, industry skills, expertise and experience and such policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) was reduced to writing in 2014. To facilitate
sustainable and balanced development of the Company, the Nomination
Committee regularly reviews the Board Diversity Policy from nomination
level to appointment, with a view to achieve a diversified spectrum
of Directors with varying perspectives, educational background and
expertise, ranging from in-depth knowhow in the payment industry,
sales and marketing talents to professional qualifications in the legal
and accounting fields. Each Director has accumulated experience in
his respective field of expertise for at least 10 to 30 years. Regardless
of their background or experience, the Directors commonly share and
acquire the talent and competence to drive the development of the
industry, being the ultimate attributes that the Nomination Committee
will uphold and carry through in the talent selection process.

Appointment of Directors is based on objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity to the Board, and decisions of the
Nomination Committee are based on the merits and contribution of the
selected candidates.

36_ PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019

RAZERARNEENRE XD KR &7
EMB - EABRERBRAEBARRAEEE
BHREREMEBEERR MR BIE L
BREEFEAR - ERFEHASLZEINIRAE
REETHERBERF REBREFTER
RAZTICBEREY AREEFHK BREE
ROEXRER TTERE EXABRERTS
BRE NARAE —BEARIRENEARRR M
BRABRR ([EF@Z BRI )N _T—NF
e RIEEARARE JENER RBEE
BEetaiRa hZE T EAEHMENESTE S T
BE UWEREEFABSTERTRTIRAKE
BERRBENE HHINTENRATH#
ENMGHERTEANERNEZRLEABIBENE
XER - EFUNFTAEXANAEERAED
10230 KR -EREFATNERALR
REOHEAERBE A ELRERTERROKRR
B Mk TARERRETFRAZEEERLT
EHRIEEE-

ESENRIBERBETBEE YRV EES T
THEFENHER - REZBEGENREAD

BEETBIELREK-



Corporate Governance Report
EREGHRE

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure
of nominating, appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection
criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter
alia, his/her academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant industry experience, character and integrity and whether he/
she can contribute to the diversity of the Board underpinned in the
Board Diversity Policy. The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a
Director is summarised as follows:—

- nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any member
of the Nomination Committee or the Board;

- evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all selection
criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy;

- performing due diligence in respect of each candidate and making
recommendation for the Board's consideration and approval;

- in case of nomination of an independent non-executive Director,
assessing the candidate’s independence under the relevant Code
Provisions and the Listing Rules;

- where nominating an independent non-executive Director for
election at general meetings, having due consideration of matters
under Code Provision A.5.5;

- in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors, reviewing
the candidate’s overall contribution and performance and making
recommendations to the Board and/or the shareholders for
consideration in connection with his/her re-election at general
meetings; and

- convening a meeting of the Board to consider the appointment or
re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2019 to, amongst others, (i) review the structure, size,
diversity and composition of the Board; (ii) assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors; (iii) consider and make
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment and re-election
of the retiring Directors and (iv) review and recommend the continuing
adoption of the Board Diversity Policy.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, Mr. Nie Guoming, the Chairman of the Board
and an executive Director, and Mr. Li Wenjin, an executive Director, shall
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM").
According to Code Provision A.4.3, any further appointment of
independent non-executive director serving more than 9 years should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. As each
of Mr. Yip Wai Ming, Dr. Wu Min and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles has
served the Company as an independent non-executive Director for more
than 9 years, separate resolutions shall be proposed for their re-election
at the AGM.

Upon the annual review of the Board’s composition taking into account
the Board Diversity Policy and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, the Nomination Committee formed the view
that the Board has maintained an appropriate mix and balance of
skills, knowledge, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business requirements of the Company and the
independent non-executive Directors remain independent. Taking into
account the aforesaid and each of the retiring Directors’ confirmation
to give sufficient time and attention to the Company's affairs
subsequent to the re-appointment, the Nomination Committee made
a recommendation to the Board for consideration the standing for re-
election at the AGM of the aforesaid retiring Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Nie Guoming, Mr. Li Wenjin, Mr.
Yip Wai Ming, Dr. Wu Min and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles. The
Board, taking into account the recommendation and other factors
as considered relevant, has decided to further recommend Mr. Nie
Guoming, Mr. Li Wenjin, Mr. Yip Wai Ming, Dr. Wu Min and Mr. Man
Kwok Kuen, Charles to stand for re-election at the AGM.

The Company'’s circular to be dispatched in April 2020 contains detailed
information of the retiring Directors standing for re-election.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010. Its terms of reference was prepared and adopted with
reference to the CG Code and its primary objectives and duties include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy,
structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management and compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
is determined with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets to review the
remuneration policy and structure and make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management and other related matters, including without limitation
the compensation arrangements relating to their termination and
dismissal. The human resources department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and proposing the
remuneration structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee shall consider and consult the Chairman
and/or the Board about these proposals. The Remuneration Committee
held one meeting during the year ended 31 December 2019 to review
and recommend the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management, to establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy and to assess the performance of the
executive Directors and approve the terms of their respective service
contracts.

The remuneration payable to the members of senior management,
including the share-based payment expenses, by band for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:
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Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands M A B AE
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,0017% 7T £4,500,000/% 7T 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,000,0017% 7T £9,500,000/% 7T 1

Further particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules are set out in Note 10 and Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties which includes, among others, formulating and reviewing the
Group's policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management, the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
formulating, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct, guidelines
and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors, and
reviewing the Group's compliance with the CG Code and relevant
disclosure obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 65 to 72.

Senior Management

The senior management has provided the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior management
to all members of the Board to enable proper discharge of duties by the
Board as a whole or each member individually by giving them balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk assessment
and management systems and acknowledges its overall responsibility for
reviewing and maintaining an adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and assets of the Group. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least
annually to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes, budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions and is kept apprised of
significant risks that may impact the performance of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against all risk issues. We have employed a bottom-
up approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at all
business unit levels and across all functional areas.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, the Audit Committee identifies
the risks of the Group and decides on the respective risk levels and the
Board shall assess and determine the nature and extent of the risks that
are acceptable to the Group when achieving its strategic objectives.
Taking into consideration the risk response, i.e. the necessary risk
mitigating measures, the relevant departments and business units shall
be assigned to implement the risk management solutions in accordance
with their respective roles and responsibilities. The identified risk
together with the risk response will be recorded at the risk register and
subject to the Board's oversight.

Main features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company include the establishment of a risk register to keep
track of and record identified risks, the assessment and evaluation of
risks, the development and continuous update of responsive procedures,
and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their
effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievement of its objectives. Risks are classified by (i) likelihood of
occurrence as Unlikely (1), Possible (2) and Likely (3) and (ii) resulting
impact as Minor (1), Moderate (2) and Significant (3). The risk degrees
determine the level of management’s attention and risk treatment effort
required.
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Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management & Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations, the Board
considers that the internal audit function would be executed most cost-
effectively through designated internal audit personnel (“IA Personnel”)
working with and as assisted by an independent consulting firm (the
“Internal Control Auditor”) to conduct regular review of the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems.

During the year, the Internal Control Auditor conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems in accordance with the scope of review agreed and approved
by the IA Personnel and requirements under Code Provision C.2 of
the CG Code. The Internal Control Auditor reported to and made
recommendations to the IA Personnel for correction and mitigation of
any internal control defects revealed. The IA Personnel considered that
the recommendations would be effective and was satisfied that there
had been no major deficiency noted in the Group’s risk management
and internal controls systems being reviewed. The Internal Control
Auditor and IA Personnel regularly reports to the Audit Committee the
results of the activities pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness
of internal controls, including but not limited to, any indications of
failings or material weaknesses in those controls, based on which,
the Audit Committee assists the Board to ensure that the financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures are sufficient and effective, and cooperates
with the Internal Control Auditor and IA Personnel to ensure their
access to information necessary to fulfil their duties and responsibilities
with respect to risk assessment and risk management. Accordingly, the
Audit Committee and the Board considered during the year, the risk
management and internal control systems to be effective and have been
implemented with adequate resources during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board has adopted a policy for handling and dissemination of inside
information (the “Inside Information Policy”). The Inside Information
Policy stipulates the obligations of the Group in relation to restriction
on sharing non-public information, handling of rumours, unintentional
selective disclosure, exemptions and statutory waiver to the disclosure of
inside information, external communication guidelines and compliance
and reporting procedures. Management of the Company takes all
reasonable measures from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent breach of any disclosure obligations. Employees are
required to promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of
inside information to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or his
delegates, who will notify the Board timely and accordingly, in which
case and in the event that there is evidence of material violation of the
Inside Information Policy, the Board or designated appropriate persons
will decide the course of actions for rectifying the problem and avoiding
recurrence.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company
in respect of the Group’s annual audit and other audit related
services, audit services for the subsidiaries of the Company and non-
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to approximately HK$2,360,000, HK$268,000 and HK$685,000
respectively.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(a) Procedures for Requisitioning a Special General

Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition
for a special general meeting not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited in accordance
with the Bye-laws and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require
the Directors to call a special general meeting for the transaction
of business specified in the requisition.

(b) Procedures for Putting forward Proposals at General

Meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders
may together, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meetings.

() Communication with Shareholders and Investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between shareholders and the Board. The
Company held one general meeting in 2019, being the annual
general meeting held on 2 May 2019 (the “2019 AGM").
Notice of the 2019 AGM was duly sent in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules and applicable laws. All
members of the Board attended the 2019 AGM and adequate
measures were taken to provide effective communication with
shareholders and to enable effectively communication of their
views to the Board. At the 2019 AGM, the Directors were made
available to answer questions in accordance with the requirements
under the CG Code. The Company’s external auditor also
attended the 2019 AGM to answer any questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies applied and its independence.
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Other Communications
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary(ies) to
direct their written enquires.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Board regularly reviews the Company's shareholders
communication policy (which has been made available at the
Company's website) to ensure that the shareholders and potential
investors at large are provided with ready, equal and timely access
to balanced and understandable information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, corporate governance and risk profile, in
order to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow active shareholders’ engagement with the
Company.

The Company also maintains a website at www.paxglobal.com.hk,
where updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information and news can always be found.

Constitutional Documents
There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

NIE Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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Report of the Directors
EFEHE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the development and sales of E-payment
Terminals products and the provision of payment solutions services and
maintenance and installation services.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading E-payment Terminals solutions provider and one
of the most active global players. The Group was founded in 2000 and
the Company went listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) in December 2010. The strategy of PAX is to
focus on two key particular customer groups (financial institutions and
third-party merchant acquirers) by offering various integrated payment
solutions services.

Further details of the business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019, details of proposed dividends and discussion on the
Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman'’s
Statement section on pages 9 to 12 and Management Discussion and
Analysis section on pages 13 to 24. Particulars of any important event
affecting the Group can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis section on pages 13 to 24 and the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The aforementioned references under this sub-section to other parts of
this annual report form part of this Report of the Directors.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Exchange Rates
Exposure” in Management Discussion and Analysis, the Group faces
possible risks and uncertainties in relation to the constantly advancing
technology, the international trade dispute and the possible change in
government policies in the payment industry in the PRC, which could
lead to pricing pressure, reduced operating margins, loss of market
share and increased capital expenditures. The Group will closely monitor
any changes in connection with these possible risks and uncertainties
and adjust its strategies accordingly. Meanwhile, the Group continues
to invest resources in R&D to develop new products and offer advanced
payment solutions to customers in order to remain competitive.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group values the importance of protecting the environment in
the process of operation. As the Group’s business does not involve
production lines, major wastes comprise terminal machines and tools
to be disposed of post customer consumption. To mitigate the adverse
impact on the environment, waste machines and tools are transferred to
government-recognised recycling companies for undergoing electronic
waste recycling and decomposition. In recent years, we have also
strengthened the green office concept by promoting paperless office,
use of energy-saving electrical appliances such as LED light pipes and
inductive faucets, wastes classification and recycling, and encouraging
video conferencing in place of physical business trips to reduce energy
consumption and carbon footprint.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group seeks to uphold high standard of integrity in all aspects
of business and is committed to ensure that its affairs are conducted
in accordance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements
and has formulated and adopted various internal control measures,
approval procedures and training within all business units at all levels
of the Group. During the year, there has been no violation or breach
of relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Company.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group emphasises on maintaining good relationship with its
stakeholders and considers it a key element to sustainable business
growth.

Employees

The Group has always been people-oriented and has attached great
importance to human resource management. We attract excellent
talents through fair recruitment policy and provide employees with
training opportunities, good career development prospect and growth
opportunities. From time to time, we offer our employees remuneration
packages that are comprehensive and attractive. Some employees
are granted options under the Company's share option scheme in
recognition of their contribution. We also value our employee’s physical
and mental development. Diverse events and activities are organised for
the employees for fostering work-life balance and personal growth.

_46_ PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019

REBRERRKRR

AEEGELEEBRTERRBERENEEE -
HRARBNEB IS BEEER BRMNER
NEIBBEREFPERRTERENKHEA -
(2] Wy <R B 1 L & X2 RS B8 AT Y (B g R
TEFARERAMDE - UREEIRENZE
BT FRMBERERLANESBRREER
£ EREBEE R AMLED L E N K BKBESA - FE
MoBERERMEEERBBRELAARE
s U 2= DR BETR {8 8 R Bk fe £ »

BFHEBEERAM

AEBENR/FEBETENSERE LD
MREEHKRREMZEZELREEZNET X
EHERRARNEEMAEZHLFIANERA
HRFR A 0 - WAL RIEF - REFER - A EIE
RABLHRARBEATENHBERER -

B2 ¥ ERN s AE B E R B 1R

AEEBRENGSHBEERT RIFBAE LR
REERBAFEEENERAE

’E

AEBE-—BEERAUAARS SEERANER
B RIEEATFHRERRBRESFTAL
YIRHFIRE R TEIRFNEXERRA
SR EKE BMITRBEREAGTHGBEEZE
REARS N AEBRDETREAFERE
FHEIER TRRE  ARBEER - RATER
BTINHGLEE REBABSELTS Mk
THREEENTFEREAZE-



Report of the Directors
EFEHE

Customers

The Group is committed to offering our customers products and services
to the best of our ability. We highly value comments and suggestions of
our customers and have always maintained effective communications
with the customers. We will continue to reach out for current and
prospective customers through, inter-alia, on-site visits and major
customers satisfaction surveys. We believe that customers’ feedback
would help us to identify areas of improvement and advance us to
achieve excellence.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with suppliers is essential to the Group's
business performance and growth because suppliers can have direct
influence over the quality of the products and services and customer
satisfaction. We adopt a “Management Measures for Suppliers” in
respect of the supplier selection procedures, quality testing methods and
comprehensive appraisal and evaluation system on potential and existing
suppliers and their products and performance. We are committed
to establishing a close and long-term cooperation relationship with
business partners.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 73.

DIVIDEND

The Board's goal is to bring sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group's future development.
Pursuant to the Company’s dividend policy, dividends may be
recommended, declared and paid to shareholders from time to time,
determined at the sole and absolute discretion of the Board, taking into
account the following factors:

. Group'’s financial results and general financial condition;

. the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio and return on equity;
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° liquidity position and capital requirement of the Group;
° the Group's current and future operations;

° the Group's business development strategies and future expansion
plans;

. the general market conditions;

° any relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company; and

° any other factors that the Board considers relevant.

During the year, a final dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and an interim dividend of HK$0.04 per
ordinary share for the six months ended 30 June 2019, each amounting
to approximately HK$44.0 million, were paid to the shareholders of the
Company.

The Board has recommended a payment of final dividend of HK$0.06
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$0.04 per ordinary share) to qualified shareholders of the Company,
subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Together with
the interim dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share (2018: HK$0.04 per
ordinary share), the total dividend per ordinary share for the year was
HK$0.10 (2018: HK$0.08).
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations of HK$964,000 were made by the Group during
the year (2018: HK$1,005,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

During the year, the Company operated two share option schemes
adopted on 1 December 2010 (the “2010 Scheme”) and 2 May 2019
(the 2019 Scheme") respectively, both having an effective period of 10
years from the aforesaid adoption dates, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended.
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The 2010 Scheme

Eligible participants of the 2010 Scheme would be any Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) and employees of the Group and any advisers,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters or service
providers of any member of the Group who, the Board considers, in its
sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The purpose of the 2010 Scheme is to reward the relevant participants
who have contributed or will contribute to the Group and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Group for the
benefit of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.

Unless approved by the independent shareholders, the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of share options
granted to each eligible participant under the 2010 Scheme (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1.0% of the number of the shares of the Company in issue.

The exercise price for the share options under the 2010 Scheme shall be
determined by the Board and must be not lower than the highest of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares.

There is no minimum period for which a share option must be held or
performance targets which need to be achieved by the grantee before
the share option can be exercised. However, such restrictions may be
imposed on a case by case basis as terms of the grant of each share
option.

The grantees of share options shall each pay the Company HK$1.00

in acceptance of the Company's offer to the grant of option within 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of grant.
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As at 31 December 2019, the maximum number of share options to be
granted under the 2010 Scheme had all been granted. No further share
options may be granted under the 2010 Scheme and no further share is
available for issue under the 2010 Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no share option was
granted, exercised or cancelled under the 2010 Scheme and the entire
8,534,000 outstanding options granted thereunder have lapsed.

The 2019 Scheme

The purpose of the 2019 Scheme is to reward eligible participants who
have contributed or will contribute to the Group and to encourage
eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Eligible participants of the 2019 Scheme would be any Director, officer,
employee or consultant of any member of the Group and any other
groups or classes of participants which the Board, in its absolute
discretion, considers to have contributed or will contribute, whether
by way of business alliance or other business arrangement, to the
development and growth of the Group. The Board recognises persons
other than the Group’s personnel may also contribute to the Group’s
development and growth if such persons can contribute in the capacity
of distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or other service providers of the Group. The Board will apply
the aforesaid in any consideration of potential eligible participants that
are not the Group's personnel.

Unless approved by the independent shareholders, the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of share options
granted under the 2019 Scheme to each eligible participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1.0% of the total number of the shares of the Company in
issue.
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The exercise price for any share option under the 2019 Scheme which
may be granted shall be determined by the Board and must be not
lower than the highest of:

(1)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares.

There is no minimum period for which a share option must be held or
performance targets which need to be achieved by the grantee before
the share option can be exercised. However, such restrictions may be
imposed on a case by case basis as terms of the grant.

The grantees of share options shall each pay the Company HK$1.00
in acceptance of the Company's offer to the grant of option within 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2019 Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (if any) will be 82,514,550 shares, being 7.5% of the
total number of shares in issue on 2 May 2019, the date of adoption of
the 2019 Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 82,510,000 share options

were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Group under
the 2019 Scheme.
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MOVEMENTS IN THE SHARE OPTIONS OF THE ARBRNERESE
COMPANY
Number of Number of
outstanding outstanding
Closing price share options share options
immediately held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled held as at
before the 1 January during during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant date of grant  Exercise price 2019 the year the year the year the year 2019
RZB-NE RZB-NEF
-A-H +ZA=+-H
2 iz itz
Bt A A HRTE HRTE
#H RiAH Wl E T%E BREHE FRRIE ERTH FREX FREH BREE
(HKS) (HKS)
(Br) (Br)
Directors
£
Nie Guoming 2 October 2019* 3.530 3.570 - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
A ZE-NETAZEx
Lu Jie 2 October 2019* 3.530 3.570 - 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
R “E-hETAZA
Li Wenjin 2 October 2019* 3.530 3.570 - 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
e “E-hETAZA
Total for Directors - 23,000,000 - - - 23,000,000
&:t
Employees
E&
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014% 4.680 4.860 6,954,000 - - (6,954,000) - -
(#3t) ZE2-MERAZTNB*
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.530 3.570 - 59,510,000 - - - 59,510,000
(#31) ZE-NETAZEx
Total for Employees 6,954,000 59,510,000 - (6,954,000) - 59,510,000
EE&
Consultants
B
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.680 4.860 1,580,000 - - (1,580,000) - -
(@:) “Z-MERAZTNB*
Total for Consultants 1,580,000 - - (1,580,000) - -
Sy
Total 8,534,000 82,510,000 - (8,534,000) - 82,510,000
&%
* 30% of the share options were vested on the date of grant, a further 30%  * 30%BREDNELBBEE  S/30%HER

were vested on the first anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining
40% were vested on the second anniversary of the date of grant. All share
options are immediately exercisable after being vested to the grantees.
The validity period of these share options shall be 5 years from the date of
grant.

f As at the date of this report, a total of 24,753,000 shares (representing
approximately 2.28% of the shares in issue as at the date of this Report)
are available for issue under the 2019 Scheme.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had reserves available for
distribution as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) amounting to HK$8,645,000 (2018: HK$40,148,000).
However, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$1,274,530,000 (2018: HK$1,274,530,000) may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws and
there was no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 184.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2019.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
NIE Guoming

LU Jie

LI Wenijin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at
the annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. NIE Guoming and Mr. LI Wenjin will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Separate resolutions shall also be proposed for the re-election of Mr.
Yip Wai Ming, Dr. Wu Min and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles, each of
whom having served the Company as an independent non-executive
Director for more than 9 years, at the AGM pursuant to Code Provision
A.4.3.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, each of the executive Directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing, from 23 May 2019 for Mr. Lu Jie and 1 December 2019
for Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li Wenjin, unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of their respective service contracts.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
are set out on pages 6 to 8.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
and officers of the Group is currently in force and remained in force
throughout the financial year.

Throughout the year, the Company has maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity against liability,
including but not limited to liability in respect of legal action against
the Directors and officers thereby sustained or incurred arising from or
incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.
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EFEHE

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of each
Director and the chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”)
in the Company’s shares (the “Shares”), underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

ESERITRARRKRG - HEROGKRES
RS MK A

N-B-AE+-_A=+—8B KEFERLARQ
AITTHABE ([1TERBE ) AR 7 & H FE B
FE(EERBFAFARBER ([EFHRBEK
Bl 1) EXVED) AR ARG ([ ]) ~ KA F]
HEAROREST HEEDLARNRRIRER
HERHEENEIEFEENELMRBIE L
MR EI0FE LM BETAZBEETESER
SHVRESTR| ([REFR ) EAEARARE
BERAXZHARARE ([BAT]) RS &%
R INE

ANEEBREE0I0B THEBER

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding
in the total
Personal Other number of
Name of Director Capacity interests interests Total” Shares in issue*
BRITRG
BYHREZ
EEnE BREM BARER Hip gz #/E BHEI
Nie Guoming (Chairman) Beneficial owner 4,200,000 1,000,000 5,200,000(L) 0.47%
EEB(XF) EREBA
Lu Jie (Chief Executive Officer) Beneficial owner 8,870,000 11,000,000 19,870,000(L) 1.81%
BEA (TRER) EREBA
Li Wenjin Beneficial owner 2,890,000 11,000,000 13,890,000(L) 1.26%
FNE EREBA

Notes:

(i) The letter “L" denotes a long position in Shares.

(i)  These represented the underlying interests in Shares in respect of share
options granted to the respective Director subject to certain vesting
conditions, the details of which are provided in the section headed “Share

Option Scheme” in this Report of the Directors.

* The percentage is calculated based on the total number of Shares in issue
as at 31 December 2019 which was 1,100,194,000 ordinary shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND

FERRRRG R AABERDERS KRR

SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING B

SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of substantial ~ Z ARG IRIEES M HEIEHIE3361EFEN
shareholders (not being a Director or the Chief Executive) in the shares, & mffi@ER R_ZE—hLF+-_A=+—8 "
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated TEMRRE (MIFEFHITHAER) RAQR A RE
corporations as recorded in the register maintained by the Company HEEHEE D - HBAKO REFTRERN

under Section 336 of the SFO are as follows: Hm MKW
Approximate
Class of Total number percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity securities of Shares (" shareholding®
BAER
BRER 5% EHER BipaEE O Baokke
Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary 364,000,000(L) 33.09%
("Hi Sun”) BB A LA
EEEE (PR AERAR ([&E])
Kopernik Global Investors LLC Investment manager Ordinary 65,995,000(L) 5.99%
HEKIE LA
Jupiter Fund Management plc Interest of controlled Ordinary 56,829,000(L)® 5.17%
corporations LB
I EEER
Notes: B 5
1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in Shares. 1. FEILIXRTARRMHDETE -

2. The percentage is calculated based on the total number of Shares inissue 2. B BREARTGR -_Z—AF+ A

as at 31 December 2019 which was 1,100,194,000 ordinary shares.

=+ —HE%TRMDEE (BI,100,194,000
B AR ) 5T & -

3. These represented interests in Shares by virtue of its directly and indirectly 3. BREHEEELEEZ2BIIELE ZEHMEL

100% controlled corporations.

R 15 4 25
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transaction

Investment Agreement with Hi Sun, Megahunt, Megahunt

HK and others

On 4 December 2019, Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“Wonder Pax"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an investment agreement (the “Investment Agreement”)
with Mega Hunt Microelectronics (Beijing) Limited (“Megahunt”), Mega
Hunt Microelectronics Limited (“Megahunt HK"), Hi Sun, /8B RE
SXNEREERBREESH L (BRAER) (“Ju Xin Fund”), B
(FEHFAERR)BEEEFR L (BRAR) ("Xin Lian Xin”, together
with Ju Xin Fund as the “Other Investors”) and Mr. Li Li (“"Mr. Li Li"),
Mr. Liu Zhan-li (“Mr. Liu"), Mr. Xu Changjun, Mr. Xu Wensheng, Mr.
Yang Lei ("Mr. Yang”), Ms. Hui Lok Yan and Ms. Song Jie (“Ms. Song”)
(collectively the “Management Shareholders”).

Hi Sun, Megahunt and Megahunt HK are connected persons of the
Company under the Listing Rules, as Hi Sun is a substantial shareholder
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company and each of
Megahunt and Megahunt HK is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hi Sun, hence an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
Hi Sun. Save as the aforesaid, rest of the parties to the Investment
Agreement are independent third parties.

Pursuant to the Investment Agreement, Wonder Pax conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, and be allotted, approximately 3.64% of the
enlarged registered capital of Megahunt at a consideration of RMB20
million with an exit option, pursuant to which Wonder Pax shall have
the right to require Megahunt HK to repurchase (in whole or in part) the
registered capital of Megahunt held by Wonder Pax in the event that
an initial public offering is not implemented by Megahunt on or before
31 December 2023 (as detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 4 December 2019) at a consideration of RMB20 million after the
exercise of the share options granted under the share option scheme of
Megahunt in full by the Management Shareholders (the “Exercise”).

Subsequent to the Exercise, Mr. Li Li, Mr. Liu, Mr. Yang and Ms. Song
has directed Beijing Xinhui Technology Center (Limited Partnership), a
limited partnership newly set up in the PRC, whose capital contribution
is in accordance with their respective proportionate equity interests in
Megahunt as a result of the Exercise, to take up the entirety of their
equity interests in Megahunt. The arrangement does not change the
effective interests in Megahunt held by each of Mr. Li Li, Mr. Liu, Mr.
Yang and Ms. Song respectively as contemplated under the Investment
Agreement.

Immediately after the completion of the Investment Agreement,
Megahunt was owned as to approximately 3.64% by Wonder Pax,
approximately 65.73% by Megahunt HK, in aggregate approximately
19.72% by the Management Shareholders and approximately 10.91%
by the Other Investors.
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The Board considers the Investment Agreement as an opportunity
to add momentum to the growth of the Group and explore new
markets with significant growth potential. The Board believes that,
through capitalizing on the established market position, expertise and
experience of Megahunt, the Company could through the transactions
contemplated under the Investment Agreement achieve synergy and
obtain strategic benefit through a strengthened supplier and buyer
relationship, hence, generate return to the shareholders.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Framework agreements with Hi Sun

Hi Sun (together with its subsidiaries the “Hi Sun Group”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and its subsidiaries are connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. Accordingly,
transactions between the Group and the Hi Sun Group constitute
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has, from time to time,
entered into individual agreements with the Hi Sun Group relating to (i)
the supply of E-payment Terminals Products (the “E-payment Terminals
Transactions”) and (ii) the purchase of Chips (the “Chips Transactions”).
These transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

i Supply of E-payment Terminals Products
On 5 December 2018, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “2019 Framework Agreement”) with Hi Sun,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell and the Hi Sun Group
agreed to purchase the E-payment Terminals Products for a term
of 3 years commencing on 1 January 2019 and expired on 31
December 2021.

The annual caps of the total contract value for the E-payment
Terminals Transactions under the 2019 Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2019, 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2021 were set at HK$170,000,000
and the actual aggregate contract value for the E-payment
Terminals Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
HK$47,498,000.

In view of Hi Sun Group's track record as a payment processing
solutions provider, the Board considers the continuous supply
of E-payment Terminals Products to Hi Sun Group by virtue of
entering into of the 2019 Framework Agreement would offer
considerable potential for the Group to secure market share and
maintain the Group’s market position in the E-payment Terminals
Products market.
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ii.

During the year, the Group has followed the internal control
measures and policies in determining the prices and terms of
the individual agreements governing the E-payment Terminals
Transactions, and all E-payment Terminals Transactions were on
terms no less favourable to the Group than those offered to
independent third parties for products of comparable quality,
guantity and specifications.

Purchase of Chips

On 30 December 2016, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “2017 Chips Framework Agreement”) with
Hi Sun, pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase and
the Hi Sun Group agreed to sell the mag-stripe card security
decoder chips (the “Security Decoder Chips”), the security
micro controller unit chips (the “Security Micro Controller Unit
Chips”) and the contactless reader chips (the “Contactless
Reader Chips”, collectively with the Security Decoder Chips and
Security Micro Controller Unit Chips, the “Chips”). The 2017
Chips Framework Agreement commenced on 1 January 2017
and expired on 31 December 2019. The annual caps of the
total contract value for the Chips Transactions under the 2017
Chips Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31
December 2017, 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019
were set at HK$65,000,000, HK$70,000,000 and HK$75,000,000
respectively, and the actual aggregate contract value for the
sale and purchase of Chips for each of the three years ended
31 December 2017, 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019
were HK$59,966,000, HK$67,587,000 and HK$52,138,000
respectively.

In view of the Group’s continuous demand for the Chips after
the expiry of the term of the 2017 Chips Framework Agreement,
the Company and Hi Sun entered into another framework
agreement on 30 December 2019 (the “2020 Chips Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase
and Hi Sun Group agreed to sell the Chips for a term of 3 years
commencing on 1 January 2020 and expiring on 31 December
2022. The annual caps of the total contract value for the Chips
Transactions under the 2020 Chips Framework Agreement for the
three years ending 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2022 were set at HK$80,000,000, HK$90,000,000
and HK$110,000,000 respectively.
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The Board considered that the entering into of the 2020 Chips
Framework Agreement would ensure continuous and stable supply
of the Chips for production of the Group's E-Payment Terminals
related products and reduce the production costs by saving the
operational costs in sourcing suitable market suppliers, as the
Chips supplied by the Hi Sun Group were fit for the Group's
production needs and with specifications not commonly supplied
by other market suppliers.

During the year, the purchase price of the Chips under the
2020 Chips Framework Agreement were determined by making
reference to the prices of other products sold by Hi Sun Group and
the prices of similar products sold by third party suppliers in the
industry. The Group has also adopted internal control measures
in respect of, inter alia, determining the prices and terms of the
individual agreements governing the prices and terms for the
Chips Transactions and sourcing for comparable suppliers. The
Chips Transactions were on terms no less favourable to the Group
than those available from independent third parties.

Please also refer to Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements for
other details.

The Board including the independent non-executive Directors has
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that these transactions were entered into by the Company in
accordance with relevant pricing policies, and further opined that these
transactions were conducted:

O] in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(ili) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2019 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Board confirms
that the auditor has issued an unqualified letter confirming the matters
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above for the year ended
31 December 2019 as being in order. A Copy of this letter has been
provided to the Stock Exchange.
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The Company has complied with the applicable requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the
year is disclosed in Note 35 to the financial statements. All related party
transactions that constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions (as the case may be) (other than those described
in the section above headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions”) under the Listing Rules are exempt from
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS OF
INTERESTS

A deed of non-competition was entered into between the Company and
Hi Sun on 1 December 2010 (“"Deed of Non-Competition”), pursuant
to which Hi Sun shall not compete either directly or indirectly with the
Group’s principal business activities in such geographic territories in
which the Group operates.

Hi Sun has signed an annual declaration (“Declaration”) of compliance
with the Deed of Non-competition confirming its compliance with the
non-competition undertakings in the Deed of Non-Competition during
the year. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned undertakings and consider that Hi Sun has complied
with the Deed of Non-Competition during the financial year ended 31
December 2019.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Li Wenjin (“Mr. Li”), Director of the Company, who is concurrently
serving as a director of Hi Sun and certain of its subsidiaries, is interested
in Hi Sun Group and hence required to abstain from voting on any
resolution of the Board in respect of any particular transaction or
business involving any actual or potential conflict of interest between
the Group and the Hi Sun Group.
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Notwithstanding Mr. Li's aforesaid interests in the Hi Sun Group, the
Board considers that Mr. Li is not interested in a business competing
or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly with the Group’s
business, taking into account the Deed of Non-Competition, the
Declaration, any implications thereunder and the independent non-
executive Directors’ subsequent review thereof.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors or any of their respective
associates is interested in any business competing or likely to compete
with the Group's business that is discloseable under Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in which any Director or any entity connected
with a Director is or was materially interested directly or indirectly
subsisting at any time during or at the end of the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2019 attributable to the Group’'s major suppliers and
customers are respectively as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 18.1%
— five largest suppliers combined 42.7%
Sales

— the largest customer 41.1%
— five largest customers combined 54.6%
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Report of the Directors
EFEHE

PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate in
a defined contribution retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) set up in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, under which employers and employees are each required
to make regular mandatory contributions calculated at 5% of the
employee’s relevant income (“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF
Scheme, subject to the minimum and maximum relevant income levels
as prescribed by law. Employees may also make voluntary contributions
additional to Mandatory Contributions.

Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an employee
are fully and immediately vested in the employee once paid to the
trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return derived from the
investment of the Mandatory Contributions is also fully and immediately
vested in the employee. The employees are entitled to all of the accrued
benefits derived from the employer's Mandatory Contributions upon
retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject
to other applicable provisions of law.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC, the
Group is required to contribute in favour of the employees in the PRC
an amount of approximately 7% to 20% of their basic wages to certain
retirement benefit schemes. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of those workers of the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Directors confirm that the Company has maintained at all times during
the year sufficient public float as prescribed by the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceding
three years and will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Nie Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZRBEN R &
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of PAX Global Technology Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of PAX Global Technology Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 73
to 183, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BEN R &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment of receivables

. Provision for inventories
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZRBEN R &

Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

& .

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMHEFTNAEERRETSBR

Impairment of receivables

FE W 5k I8 7Y 6t 16

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors), Note 4(c)
(critical accounting estimates and judgements) and Note
22 (trade and bills receivables and other financial assets at
amortised cost) to the consolidated financial statements for
related disclosures

BRI FEm 175 - 55 2 B4 & B 5 R KT aE3. 1(b)(ii)
(BHBREBEE) Wit (EE S 1G5 RAE) RIiF
ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ&@%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%Zﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁ
JE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had gross trade
receivables of HK$1,598.4 million and provision for
impairment of trade receivables of HK$93.6 million.
Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on
trade receivables.

RZZB-NAF+ZA=+—RH EXENEKEREER
1,598.48 BB T RUSRFURMERELN 3 6B EET
EXEEREREFNEBEREEEEIEEE-

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected
credit losses. Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
of receivables are assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature
of the customer, its geographical location and its ageing
category, and applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.
The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced from the past 3 years
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
EREEMRAE T EEREERR R ENFEMBR
AR P BT & KSR A B R IE @ B st R E
BB (E LA R FT S - AT TR E BB IER - HsreV/E
WHRIENERERPEE IR0 S A RERARIZBE
DMEEERBFEGETTH I AR (4 E AT B W - I
FERTEEEE BB XN EEREKIEN BRE A% - AHE
EFEBEDRBRE=FHRNELEEHEET UL
ARG R AEIE SR BT ET P ERE
WHIRRE NN RBRBEREE -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade
receivables and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of the
trade receivables.

BRI BB TERNEURROEANBE UREEE
JE U BR TR A (5 B B 1 R B 08 M fh wt A0 4 T -

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on provision for impairment losses of trade receivables
included:

gﬁ%ﬁ%%@Eﬂﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ@%%%ﬁZ%ﬁﬁ%@

- Understood and validated the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures on
periodic review of aged receivables and assessment on
expected credit losses allowance of receivables;

- BEBNRIEEREERTHNERERRERF BRAHTH
?E@%%Wﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%
27

- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile
of trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales
invoices;

— FERRESHEBEERSE UG VNS EBER AR
ZLEREME

- Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of
trade receivables against bank receipts; and

— B AERRBITRIEAAEBRERNEE B RNE
fHER K

- Obtained management’s assessment on the expected
credit losses allowance of receivables. We corroborated
and validated management’s assessment based on the
historical settlement pattern from the past 3 years,
correspondence with the customers, evidence from
external sources including the relevant public search
results relating to the financial circumstances of the
relevant customers and market research regarding
the relevant forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors used in management’s
assessment.

—  HUSEREH RKIATEEEEEERR T o F
ERNBE=FEMEN  BEF a8 N KA INEHR
MER (BEEATFOMBERANERARERER)
UERB@AEEENNMIZHE SELRZEEED
A I ERE AN AR ERESER -

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and
judgement made by management in respect of the expected
credit losses allowance and the collectability of receivables
were supportable by the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMHEFTNAEERRETSBR

Provision for inventories

FEEE

Refer to Note 4(b) (critical accounting estimates and
Jjudgements) and Note 21 (inventories) to the consolidated
financial statements for the related disclosures
HFEIHEFEER R F2EGE BRI 240) (E
Zoi A RAED) R E21(FE) -

The Group held inventories of HK$1,301.5 million as at 31
December 2019. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value (“NRV"). The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories are aged and
damaged, if they have become obsolete, or if their selling
prices have declined. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group has made provision for inventories of
HK$39.0 million.

EEER T -AF+-_A=1T—HEBFEMN,3015
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Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of
inventories by considering the ageing profile, inventory
obsolescence and estimated selling price of individual
inventory items.

EREETEFERANA R FE 2 BIKE A%ﬁﬂ
NEFEENER FEELBKMERFENRREE

Management calculates the NRV at each period end based
on the estimated selling price less selling expenses, which
requires significant judgements and assumptions to be
made to determine the estimated selling price of individual
product, including historical experience of selling products
of similar nature and expectation of future sales based on
current market conditions.
EEENEBERAEEREHEM R ESHROATZR
FE - T A B E m 2 TR S B R A VE L EARHE MR
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Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on NRV and obsolescence of inventories included:
BMEEHEREENGEECAZRFERER T ARFNT
HERT R B

- Understood and validated the control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures in
estimating the NRV of the inventories and conducting
periodic review of inventory obsolescence;

- BREMREREACOREER 0mEHFET

- Observed client’s inventory counts to identify whether
there is any damaged or obsolete inventory;

- HEEETESR MERHEEEEAREIEREE:

- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing
profile of individual inventory items by checking to the
underlying procurement correspondence and invoices;

— BERESHEBRBENLEZR UM VRS ERF
BIRA B2 EREM

- Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent usage of
significant inventory items, obtained through the usage
report subsequent to the year end as a basis to identify
inventory obsolescence. Where there are no subsequent
usage of the respective items after the year end, we
discussed with management its assessment on estimated
future utilisation, corroborating explanations with the
inventory ageing, sales orders and marketability of the
relevant finished goods by using our industry knowledge
and external market analysis as appropriate; and
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Key Audit Matter
HRETEE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMHEFTNAEERRETSBR

Management consistently applies a provisioning
methodology for slow moving inventories based on
inventory ageing and makes specific provision for long
aged inventories. Management also conducted periodic
review on inventory obsolescence, including performance
of periodic inventory counts and review of holding period
for individual inventory items.
ERERTETHUBEFTEERERRETE A3t
REREGEELHE ERE ERETENFERT AR
ETERES BREHETHFERE LEHNERNFER
BV A

We focused on this area due to the estimation of provision
for inventories involves significant judgement and various
uncertainties as a result of changing technology, customer

Tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory
items, by comparing the selling price subsequent to the
year end, against the carrying values of these individual
finished goods. Where there are no subsequent sales
of the respective finished goods after the year end,
we discussed with management as to the realisable
value of the products, corroborating explanations with
the inventory ageing, sales orders, historical margins,
and current market conditions by using our industry
knowledge and external market analysis, as appropriate.
AR NAEE EFEERE 2 2 5%E £
B B SR N R E B EREEF -8
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Sof (WER) EEEBFEFH HETE BE
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demand and competitors actions.

BRI SR REN EFENR BT REXHE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Based on the procedures described, we found the estimations
of management in relation to the provision for inventories
were supportable by available evidence.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZRBEN R &

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement
FeElm=R

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—BLtEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHT FABT
Revenue A 5 4,925,733 4,415,409
Cost of sales FE A=W 7 (2,980,900) (2,788,728)
Gross profit EX 1,944,833 1,626,681
Other income E A 5 79,056 76,929
Other gains Wz 5 12,774 7,577
Selling expenses HERX 7 (465,657)  (437,809)
Administrative expenses THE A 7,8 (743,466)  (590,819)
Net impairment losses on financial assets TREEZREFES 7 (65,914) (43,290)
Operating profit K& RF 761,626 639,269
Finance costs W% ER 9 (5,155) (4,768)
Share of results of investments accounted for — Z#EZFEARZ
using the equity method WERE 20 (1,798) (1,759)
Profit before income tax BRETB B AR F 754,673 632,742
Income tax expense Fris®if X 1 (129,809)  (117,344)
Profit for the year FERA 624,864 515,398
Profit/(loss) attributable to: BAEERN (BE) :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NIEEFEWN 623,873 522,470
Non-controlling interests IEVER S 991 (7,072)
624,864 515,398
HK$ HK$
per share per share
sRET FAET
Earnings per share for the profit ERARFEA
attributable to the owners of EhERzE8RAER:
the Company:
— Basic —HR 12(a) 0.567 0.475
— Diluted — s 12(b) 0.567 0.475

The notes on pages 80 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FEEEWRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—BLtEE

2019 2018
—E-AFE —ZE)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
gz FERT FHET
Profit for the year FRIEF 624,864 515,398
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, Ht2m (FE) ki
net of tax HIBRBLE
Item that may be subsequently reclassified to ~ A R[pEEH P EZ 85 2 HH
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of & /B 4NIE R A BA IS ¥R &R
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ~ E4HIE X =% (46,105) (104,674)
Items that will not be reclassified to T 2B R Em s HE
profit or loss
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value —IEIZAF{E AH 2@z
through other comprehensive income ZERMEEZNE 18(b) (2,240) (7,269)
Remeasurement of post-employment BB ERNESERT
benefit obligation (445) 103
Total comprehensive income for the year, HEZEUNGFEAE  HIRBIE
net of tax 576,074 403,558
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EiEzmEkE S (FE)8EHE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIESFS DN 573,222 405,952
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R = 2,852 (2,394)

576,074 403,558

The notes on pages 80 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ ZE80E183E MMl s i A M H RN E P X

IN o

financial statements. 7
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEHAERER

.n\ 7
b

N\

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
gz FBT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W W E K 14 69,610 72,368
Right-of-use assets BERRE 15 221,347 -
Land use rights 1t (5 A 4 16 - 76,023
Intangible assets mILAE 17 55,939 81,647
Financial asset at fair value through BATFEGFABRZ
profit or loss SREE 18(a) 104,707 94,058
Financial asset at fair value through BEAFEFAEMEZEKE 2
other comprehensive income TREE 18(b) 10,433 11,870
Investments accounted for using the EEREARZKE
equity method 20 15,949 17,974
Loan to an investment accounted for using BRDEAEZIREER
the equity method 35(b) 4,196 -
Other non-current assets EMIERBEE 23 4,368 46,174
Deferred income tax assets RIS EE 31 35,971 31,704
Total non-current assets IREBEELE 522,520 431,818
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 1,301,459 1,182,015
Other current assets HEfns&EE 23 17,389 24,938
Other financial assets at amortised cost R ERAS R Bt S REE 22 15,579 5,847
Trade and bills receivables JE U B R % PR WL R 9 22 1,513,374 1,919,408
Restricted cash RREIRE 24 115,877 48,816
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER 25 3,020 2,520
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEEY 26 3,230,005 2,160,192
Total current assets RBEEAE 6,196,703 5,343,736
Total assets EEHE 6,719,223 5,775,554
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to the owners of ERRFEAEGER
the Company
Share capital A A 27 110,019 110,019
Reserves % 28 4,655,926 4,132,034
4,765,945 4,242,053
Non-controlling interests FERER (26,593) (29,445)
Total equity EREE 4,739,352 4,212,608

The notes on pages 80 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
GEEERER

As at 31 December

WR+=ZB=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hEFE ZZE-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings BE 30 2,254 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 88,213 -
Deferred income tax liabilities RIS EE 31 7,240 8,641
Other non-current liabilities EMIERBAEG 6,510 13,323
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEHEE 104,217 21,964
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables FEN R R ENRE 29 1,382,487 1,190,447
Other payables and accruals Eh FE AT BR R R FE AT BUAR 29 299,057 259,120
Current tax liabilities EHHIEAE 170,381 83,171
Borrowings BE 30 - 8,244
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 23,729 -
Total current liabilities REEERE 1,875,654 1,540,982
Total liabilities BEAE 1,979,871 1,562,946
Total equity and liabilities kA ELE 6,719,223 5,775,554

AMBBER T _TFE-_A=THEEES
g YHTIEFHREE-

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 30
March 2020 and were signed on its behalf.

NIE GUOMING LI WENJIN
= E B =R
Director Director

EF o

The notes on pages 80 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 5580ZE 1838 H) Mf 5t Jh 45 & Bt 7 i) % &9 E A &6
financial statements. 7 e
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m] .
B, :\"‘;‘\:
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity / ]
Py 71 =
GeEEREBHFR
Attributable to the owners of the Company
ARTREARSE
Financial asset
at fair value
through other
Share  Employment - comprehensive Non-
Share Share Capital option benefit income Other Exchange Retained Total  controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve earnings reserves interests equity
RATE
HARK2E
[§:72
e RitERE ERGE  BRERE ZREVRRE SREEGR REE NERE RERH HEEE  FERER REAE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn Tén Tén Fin Fin Fin TEn TEn TEn
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BECR-AEAZT-BLER
Balance at 1 January 2019 WoE-NE-R-B2ik M09 124530 (414978) 81,173 (19) (182) 1301 (101004) 3208813 4,132,034 (29,45 4212608
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - - - 623873 623873 991 624,864
Other comprehensive (loss)/income 22 (58) /i
Exchange differences arising on tranglation of the ¥ SR AARERZESZ
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EREE - - - - - - - (48,024) - (48,024) 1919 (46,105)
Change in value of a financial asset at farvale ~ —BRATEFAEB2AREL
through other comprehensive income SREEINE - - - - - (2.240) - - - (2.240) - (2.240)
Remeasurement of post-employment BRAENERE
benefit obligation - - - - (387) - - - - (387) (58) (445)
Total comprehensive (loss)income for the year Fhem (BE)/ hELE - - - - (387) (2.240) - (48028) 623813 5B 2852 576,074
Transactions with owners REEAZRE
Dividends paid BHRE - - - - - - - - (88,016) (88,016) - (88,016)
Share option scheme TR
- value of senvices provided (Note 10) -BRERBHEE (KH0) - - - 38,686 - - - - - 38,686 - 38,686
Totaltransactions with owners BERAZRAEE - - - 38,686 - - - - (88,016) (49,330 - (49,330)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZB-hE
TZR=t-AzEH 110,019 1,274,530 (414,978) 119,859 (406) (10,062) 1341 (149,028) 3,834,670 4,655,926 (26,593) 4,739,352

The notes on pages 80 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SEHERBER

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ARFREAES
Financial asset
at fair value
through other
Share  Employment  comprehensive Non-
Share Share Capital option benefit income Other Exchange Retained Total  controling Total
capital premium feserve reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve earnings reserves interests equity
BATE
FAREE
Wiz
R BGEE  EABE  BRERR THETRE SRAEREE  AGBR  NERR  RERN  BRER  ORER ESEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Fitn Titn Thn Thn TEn T T T Fitn Tt Tt Fin
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-R-NEAZT-BLFE
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZF-\5-F-BHEH 110,019 1,274,530 (414,978) 81,1713 (72) (553) - 8,298 2,864,359 3812,757 (25,710) 3,897,066
Comprehensive income!(loss) 2ERE/ (58)
Profit{oss) for the year FREH/ (F8) - - - - - - - - 522,470 522,470 (7,072 515,398
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Ef2mERE/ (58)
Exchange differences arising on tranglation of AERMMELANBERELL
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EREE - - - - - - - (109,302) - (109,302) 4628 (104,674)
Change in value of a financial asset at farvalee  —BRATEFAEB2EREL
through other comprehensive income SREEINE - - - - - (7,269 - - - (7,269) - (7,269)
Remeasurement of post-employment BRAENEREN
benefit obligation - - - - 53 - - - - 53 50 103
Total comprehensive income{loss)for the year FhembE/ (BB)EE - - - - 53 (7,269) - (109302) 520470 405952 (23%) 403558
Transactions with owners REEAZRE
Dividends paid BRRE - - - - - - - - (88,016) (88,016) - (88,016)
Increase in sharefolding in a subsiciary (Note 19) M~ FMB A 2 R1E (Mt19) - - - - - - 134 - - 1,341 1,341) -
Tota transactions with owners BEEAIRHER - - - - - - 1341 - (83016) (86,679) (1341) (38,016)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZB-NETZA=T-BHES 110,019 1,274,530 (414,978) 81,1713 (19 (7.822) 134 (101,004) 3,208,813 4,132,034 (29,445) 4,212,608

The notes on pages 80 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Q/ 2
GEHERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hFE —ZZT-N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
gz FHExT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBENEERE
Cash generated from operations KEMEIRE 32(a) 1,262,356 322,460
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNBEEREH (20,557)  (109,761)
China corporate income tax paid BB XS (18,481) (9,651)
Overseas income tax paid BB INTISRR (11,272) -
Interest paid BEAFE (5,155) (4,768)
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBEHSFE 1,206,891 198,280
Cash flows from investing activities REZBNHEERE
Prepayment for an investment accounted — IR A AR CIREBNK
for using the equity method - (114)
Investment in a financial asset at fair value WE—BEATFEFAEBRZZ
through profit or loss TREE 18(a) - (40,782)
Investment in a financial asset at fair value BE—HIEAFERA
through other comprehensive income Hitn2EW =2 R EE 18(b) (803) -
Increase in short-term bank deposits N BRI TIE X (571) (2,581)
Loan to an investment accounted for using BRDEAAEZIREER
the equity method (4,196) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEWME BEMEZE (28,028) (37,214)
Proceeds from sales of property, HEME  WE REEMERIE
plant and equipment 32(b) 16,616 -
Interest received SR &I BSN 27,782 22,321
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZRENE (TR REFE
investing activities 10,800 (58,370)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHNESRE
Proceeds from loan from REFZERESEEMESHIE
the non-controlling interest 32(c) 2,254 -
Repayment of borrowings EEEE 32(c) (7.890) (5,612)
Principal elements of MEXRS 0 2 T3k
lease payments (25,346) -
Dividends paid BEIEE (88,016) (88,016)
Net cash used in financing activities REEBFTARE F58 (118,998) (93,628)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ®HE&RBRESEEYWHEIMNTE 1,098,693 46,282
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FORSRECEED
of the year 2,160,192 2,165,224
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents R & RIBE S EWMHE K EE (28,880) (51,314)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRESRBESZEEY
of the year 26 3,230,005 2,160,192

The notes on pages 80 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 5580ZE 1838 #) Mf 5t Jh 45 & B 75 ) % &9 H AR &6

LN o

financial statements. 7

BEERMNEERAT o —F-NFFH 79



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

8

GENERAL INFORMATION

PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and together with its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "“Group”) are principally engaged in the
development and sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-
sale (“E-payment Terminals”) products, provision of maintenance
and installation services (collectively, the “E-payment Terminals
solutions business”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 20
December 2010.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of units of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for financial
asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCl1"), financial asset at fair value through profit of loss
("FVPL") and post-employment benefit obligation, which are
measured at fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Q/ y
mEUBRRMEE

A number of new or amended standards became
applicable for the current reporting period, and
the Group had changed its accounting policies
as a result of adopting HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS
16").

The Group elected to adopt the new rules
retrospectively but recognised the cumulative
effect of initially applying the new standard on 1
January 2019.

The impact of the adoption of the HKFRS 16 is
disclosed below. The other standards did not
have material impact on the Group's accounting
policies and did not require any adjustments.

() Accounting policy applied from 1 January
2019
From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised
as right-of-use assets and corresponding
liabilities at the date at which the leased
assets are available for use by the Group.
Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The right-of-use assets
are depreciated over the shorter of the
assets’ useful lives and the lease terms on
a straight-line basis and stated at initially
recognised amount less depreciation and
impairment losses.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHEERME @)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(8)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 Bt BRREEFEEE
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) FEEEFRHRIF ] RS
Group ATER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

2

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

0)

Accounting policy applied from 1 January

(i)

2019 (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the fixed lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be determined, or the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments to be made under
reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the
liability.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement

of lease liability,

o prepayment, and

o any initial direct costs.

Impact of adoption

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16
retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but
has not restated comparatives for the
2018 reporting period, as permitted under
the specific transitional provisions in the
standard. The adjustments arising from the
new leasing rules are therefore recognised
in the opening of the consolidated balance
sheet on 1 January 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e
ZEeMBHRRMEE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEEHBE )
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE ()

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

(i)

Impact of adoption (continued)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group
recognised lease liabilities in relation to
leases which had previously been classified
as ‘operating leases’ under the principles
of HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17"). These
liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019 (date
of initial application of HKFRS 16). The
weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 4.7%.

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the
Group has applied a practical expedient
permitted by this standard to use a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

(i)

Impact of adoption (continued)

The reconciliation between the operating
lease commitments as disclosed by
applying HKAS 17 as at 31 December
2018 and the lease liabilities recognised in
the opening of the consolidated balance
sheet as at 1 January 2019 (date of initial

2 FESHEESME@)

21 REEE (&)

211 BB EREEFREE (&)

(a)

K F R B H 5] RAZ1E
TR (%)

(i

R FE (&)

RZE—NF+=
A=+—BEBZE
B ETERIE1750
WE LSS
FEHR_ZT—NF
—B—RB(BKXE

application of HKFRS 16) is as follows: BEAEVBREE
Al 2165 2 H) MW
MUireEERE
XAERNEHER
B2 HERWT
HK$'000
FHETT
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE—-NF+=ZA=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 BENKEEHEAE 35,986
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental 7 & X JE A B B A& A Y
borrowing rate at the date of initial 2 E KT EALER
application 32,523
Add: adjustments on lease liabilities o EEEREEE
considering the extension options HHEHERENAR 22,235
Lease liabilities recognised as at RZZE-—hF—HA—A®ERAN
1 January 2019 HEAE 54,758
Of which are : HopaiE:
— Current lease liabilities —BEHESE 16,893
— Non-current lease liabilities —JFHEERR 37,865
54,758
The associated right-of-use assets were HEEEMFAER

measured at the amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid lease payments relating to that
lease recognised as at 1 January 2019.
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HEMBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (continued)

(i) Impact of adoption (continued)
The change in accounting policy
resulted in the recognition of right-of-
use assets of HK$54,758,000, adjusted
by reclassification of prepayment on
rental expense and land use rights to
right-of-use assets of HK$43,431,000
and HK$76,023,000, respectively, in the
opening of the consolidated balance sheet
on 1 January 2019. The recognised right-
of-use assets of HK$174,212,000 are
related to office premises, factory and
warehouses (Note 15(a)).

There were no onerous lease contracts that
would have required an adjustment to the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application.

Impact of standards issued but not yet
applied by the Group

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for this reporting period and have
not been early adopted by the Group. These
standards are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet

respectively.

(ii) Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting (see (iii) below),

after initially being recognised at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

(iii) Joint arrangements
Under HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”,

consolidated balance sheet.

(iv) Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
the consolidated income statement, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividend
received or receivable from associated companies are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of

the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated company are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in this entity. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investment
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy

described in Note 2.10.

investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. The Group has joint ventures. Interests
in the joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method, after initially being recognised at cost in the

2

FESHEERE (&)

22 FERAREZEIE(E)

"E

BE

(iii)

(iv)

BEMEERQE o —F—

BaEZH

*ETF%C;‘%Eﬂ@&i?H‘J%H%ﬁ
(Bazs HagRhnR
BANBERHK H%&Aj/m\#/&
ACAESBERTEREED
ERERMEHBME MIES
ERPNEREB -AEEE
ﬁ/\p./\ E/\E\'L'/\TEG*E
BNGEEEERBRIZKAY

FRERKEMER AR
v dd
RE#EDZEHE REVNTR

PRANFERR - BE1R T A 38 B DA BE
RAEEERRE S HFE WS
2R PR AE WBE 1208 M BT 1R K
R E T EA 2 E WA
HHEAEEREEE 2 Wk
FEUEE & AR R B TR A
BEREERRD -

EAEBOIGUEREARE
ENBESENNBRAGELRS
E’U%ﬁ?&(@%ﬁﬂﬁi\ﬁﬂ?ﬁiﬁﬁ
REBKHIE) K AEETH
HRE—TEE RIELEE
REREMEBAERH RN
SKIE °

AEEREBERRRR S M
EERBRKRENEHE R
RASERZEEBNEIGE
meo RERBRTEHE  KIF

ARG BEBBBENTEEEE
3R R (B RIME B & o PARE 220K
ARMBERETHEFBRE

REEEE UBRERELEE
PrERMmBRE B — B

N mAARNIRENREE

AR IR BT L2 1077 3 BR SR 1T R
(ERER

NEFH 87



HEMBRRMEE

2

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in the consolidated
income statement. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associated
company, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHBEER#SEm)

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations 23 XBE6t

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account FB¥EBEHENKBEEAR

for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

° equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
o consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

2.5

Business combinations (continued)

Contingent consideration payable is classified either as
equity or financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of an
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that make strategic decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates or the currency in which funds from
financing activities are generated (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group's presentation

currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated income
statement, within “finance costs”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement on a net basis within

“administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at FVPL are recognised in profit or loss as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as financial assets at FVOCI are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 27 NE-BERRE

Except for freehold land with indefinite useful life, all other
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Freehold land with
indefinite life is stated at historical cost less impairment
loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5% - 10%

20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements

Office furniture and equipment  18% — 25%

Plant and equipment 9% — 33%
Motor vehicles 18% — 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs of construction including borrowing costs attributable
to the construction during the period of construction.
No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed

and ready for intended use.

2.8 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount

of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an

operating segment.

(b) Brand names, contractual customer
relationships and others

Brand names, contractual customer relationships
and others acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair values at the acquisition date.
These intangible assets have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over their expected lives from 5 to 10 years to

allocate the cost of them.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Land use rights (included in right-of-use assets)

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents upfront
prepayments made for the rights to use the land for periods
varying from 10 to 50 years. Depreciation of this right-of-use
assets is charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease or when there
is impairment, the impairment is charged to the consolidated
income statement.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill not subject to amortisation is tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

2.11.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2.11.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

e Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’'s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

M

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses). Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

@)

Fair value through other comprehensive

income

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Impairment
expenses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in “other gains” in
the consolidated income statement when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in “other gains” in the
consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

2.114 Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour cost and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.14 Trade and bills receivables

Trade and bills receivables including retention money
receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and bills receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against “net impairment losses on financial assets”
in the consolidated income statement.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at call
with banks, with original maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Trade, bills and other payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company's subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

(0

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has
a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision, where
appropriate, is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Post employment pension obligations

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including both defined benefit and defined
contribution pension plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
In countries where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government bonds are
used.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2

FESHEERE (&)

221 EEER

(@

(b)

ESEERA
BREREZNFRERENESR
FriER - AR E g Y &8 R
EHEAMRENFEREESR
BEELEE (HEm) -

BREEZNHREBEREREEZR
BRB 2B SR -

BBENKETET
AEEREZEMBE 8
ERERNRAEHFERS
aHEle

REREERBERLAERT
BRAGHEEZNREXREER
REEANRERNEERE
WETEEEMN DR FE -RER
NEEESFHBIBEEMRA
BB EEAETHE

RERNEENRETIAN
BAMWEEHEREEBAEE
MEMBENBERARBERN
ME VAT RKRER
MEE - HITEEMEFHR
KRBT MHHER RKABA
(EEa: iy all



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZFEMBHRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Post employment pension obligations

(continued)

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
consolidated income statement.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in “employment benefit reserve” in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
“reserves” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement as past service costs.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets of
the Pension Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administrated
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the Pension
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, in accordance with the rules of
the Pension Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Post employment pension obligations

(continued)

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense
when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"),
the Group is required to contribute an amount
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group.
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated income statement as

incurred.

(c) Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has

created a constructive obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Share-based payments

(a) Equity-settled share based payment
transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

*  including any market performance conditions;
e excluding the impact of any service and non-

market performance vesting conditions (for
example, remaining an employee of the entity

over a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting

conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period
which is the period over which all of the specified

vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement, with a

corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share

capital (nominal value) and share premium.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions among

group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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FEMBHRME
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETBREE@
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Revenue recognition 2.24 W AR
(i) Sales of goods () En#H&E
The Group develops and sells E-payment Terminals AEBERERFEEE TN
products. Sales are recognised when control of the U EE an o B E am O PR I R RS
products has transferred, being when the products are BRERIEE AEE@IXNM
delivered to the customers, the customer has accepted TEF BEFEEMEREE
the products and there is no unfulfilled obligation FERPEMNERNRETE
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the f£o
products.
A receivable is recognised when the goods are EE o XT3 RD A B
delivered as this is the point in time that the 6 - AT DA AR BB (B ER
consideration is unconditional because only the <SRBT EY B R A BR SN ) - (E ]
passage of time is required before the payment is due. R R YR -
A contract liability is recognised when a customer BRBERAEERREAK
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay AR REPEINREFEH
consideration and the amount is already due, before FEYNREBSHECHER
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group BR-AEENRGEEEAR
recognised its contract liabilities under other payables KPP BAREGHEEREME
and accruals as receipt in advance from customers in AR R EFT I T Y FE MK
the consolidated balance sheet. pE
(i)  Provision of services (i) EERRHE
Revenue from providing services is recognised in the RHREAERERRERE
accounting period in which the services are rendered. WErtHEARR - #iERE
Revenue from maintenance and installation services KRS 2 W= BIEN RS R
is recognised based on the actual service provided as BERRECRSE (ERARED
at the end of the reporting period as a proportion of BRIz —FH)ER BAR
the total services to be provided because the customer FehrRiMES RERZ
receives and uses the benefits simultaneously. o
2.25 Interest income 2.25 FIE WA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis F B A DA E B F 2% 12 I [ B
using the effective interest method. MR -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

As explained in note 2.1.1(a), the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee.
The new policy is described below and the impact of the
change in note 2.1.1(a).

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not
transferred to the Group as lessee were classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed lease payments. Lease
payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received and makes any adjustments specific to the
lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZFEMBHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHEBEME®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases) (continued) 226 AL (KREHONABEAN) (8)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,
° prepayment, and
. any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of premises and
all leases of low-valued assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

2.27 Value-added tax refund

Value-added tax refund is recognised in “other income”
in the consolidated income statement when there is a
reasonable assurance that the refund will be received which
generally occurs upon the receipt of the approval of tax
refund from the local tax bureau.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised in “other
income” in the consolidated income statement at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all the
attached conditions.

2.29 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects (relating to the design and testing
of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible
assets when it is probable that the project will be a success
considering its commercial and technological feasibility,
and costs can be measured reliably. Other development
expenditures are expensed as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi ("RMB"),
HK$, United States dollar (“US$”), European
dollar ("EUR") and Indian Rupee (“INR"). The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB, HK$, US$, EUR and INR, and there
are no significant assets and liabilities that are
denominated in other currencies. The Group
is subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising
from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities denominating in
a currency other than HK$, RMB, US$, EUR and
INR, which are the functional currencies of the
major operating companies within the Group.
The Group currently does not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.

The management considers the foreign exchange
risk with respect to US$ is not significant as HK$
is pegged to US$ and transactions denominated
in US$ are mainly carried out by entities with the
same functional currency. The Group manages
its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ZFEMBHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For the companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and equity of the Group would
have been approximately HK$6,322,000 (2018:
HK$6,453,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference
on translation of RMB denominated cash and
cash equivalents and the current account with a
related party.

As at 31 December 2019, if EUR had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$2,656,000 (2018:
HK$2,402,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of EUR denominated cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and the current
account with a related party.

For the companies with RMB as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2019, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year and equity of the Group would have been
approximately HK$14,238,000 higher/lower
(2018: HK$1,320,000 lower/higher) respectively,
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of HK$ denominated
cash and cash equivalents and the current
account with a related party.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For the companies with EUR as their functional
currency
As at 31 December 2019, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against EUR with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$1,906,000 (2018:
HK$1,165,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated current account
with a related party.

For the company with INR as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2019, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against INR with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$3,716,000 (2018:
HK$1,083,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated current account
with a related party.

(ii)  Price risk
The Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The income and operating cash flows of the
Group and the Company are both substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. Both the Group and the Company have
no significant interest-bearing assets, except
for deposits placed with banks and loan to
an investment accounted for using the equity
method (2018: deposits placed with banks).

As at 31 December 2019, if interest rates on
all interest-bearing bank and cash deposits and
loan to an investment accounted for using the
equity method (2018: interest-bearing bank and
cash deposits) had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year and equity of the
Group would have been HK$13,302,000 (2018:
HK$8,643,000) higher/lower respectively, due
to higher/lower interest income earned on the
deposits and loan receivable balance (2018:
deposits).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements / Y]
e
e BHRRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HRRBRERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 B¥ERBEZE(E)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) THEE &)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) BZ2HRR A FEFEELRE
(continued)) (#&)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group's
borrowings are all issued at fixed rates which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
Management considers the fair value exposure of
the fixed rate borrowings is insignificant to the
Group.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables,
other financial assets at amortised cost, financial asset
at FVPL, restricted cash, short-term bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents and loan to an investment
accounted for using the equity method.

The carrying amounts of financial asset at FVPL (Note
18), other financial assets at amortised cost (Note
22), trade and bills receivables (Note 22), restricted
cash (Note 24), short-term bank deposits (Note 25),
cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) and loan to an
investment accounted for using the equity method
(Note 35(b)) represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

(i)  Risk management

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group
are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers with an
appropriate financial strength, credit history and
an appropriate percentage of down payments. It
also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(@)

(ii)

Risk management (continued)

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales
of goods and services to the top five customers
constituted 54.6% (2018: 60.7%) of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019.
They accounted for approximately 39.9%
(2018: 52.7%) of the gross trade receivable
balances as at 31 December 2019. Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise such
credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade and bills receivables for sales of goods of
the Group and from the provision of services are
subject to the expected credit loss model. While
financial asset at FVPL, other financial assets
at amortised cost, restricted cash, short-term
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and
loan to an investment accounted for using the
equity method are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables. The Group
measures the expected credit losses on a
combination of both individual and collective
basis.
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GEMBERTMEE
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BEERER®E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BEREE(®)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade and bills receivables (continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis

The receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. As at 31
December 2019, the balance of loss allowance in
respect of these individually assessed receivables
was HK$81,616,000 (2018: HK$82,330,000).

The following table presents the balances of
gross carrying amount and loss allowance in
respect of the individually assessed receivables as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018:

b) EEREE &)

(i)

SHEERE (&)
JEURBR TR K JE R =4 (48)
KBRS E S B
75
HRENTFEMBRE
MEFSBWERFESE
K SR FE B R UR BN & Bh AT
12 R 1B B 4 B 1 A R
FH-RZZE—hF+=
B=+—8 @3 F&E
2 EUGR R 1B R E &
%8 /581,616,000 7T (=
= — )\ ££ : 82,330,000
JT) e

TEREIN_F-NFR
ZE-N\F+ZA=+—
2 {81 311 5T 1 e L 1 ) B
AR E RIE R AR

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Gross carrying amount BREBE 81,616 82,330
Loss allowance BKAEH (81,616) (82,330)
Net carrying amount BREEE - -

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying the expected credit loss rates to
the respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade and bills receivables (continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis (continued)

The expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses experienced
from the past 3 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of
loss allowance in respect of these collectively
assessed receivables was HK$11,958,000 (2018:
HK$1,839,000) based on expected credit loss
rates up to 4.10% (2018: up to 0.35%) applied
on different groupings.

Impairment losses on receivables are presented
as “net impairment losses on financial assets”
in the consolidated income statement. When
a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line
item.

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
short-term bank deposits, loan to an investment
accounted for using the equity method, financial
asset at FVPL and other financial assets at
amortised cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, short-term bank
deposits, loan to an investment accounted for
using the equity method, financial asset at FVPL
and other financial assets at amortised cost as
at 31 December 2019 (2018: cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, short-term bank
deposits, financial assets at FVPL and other
financial assets at amortised cost).
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BEERER®E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BEREE(®)

(c) Liquidity risk © ”,bizﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁ/f&“

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowings. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group's
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above the balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest-bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group maintained cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$3,230,005,000 (2018:
HK$2,160,192,000) that are expected to be readily
available and sufficient to meet the cash outflows of its
financial liabilities, hence, management considers that
Group's exposure to liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2019, no banking facilities was
available to the Group (2018: HK$11,900,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 BEERER®E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MKEREBEZE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) © REBELEEZ)
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative TERREBELAEHS THEZS
financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping WEBHENDIT SR EBED
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet FTEEMEBES REHED
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts HRAER - TRIABEBEN S HE
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted REHNKRMRRERE- AR
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their FROZEDIK R+ ZE
carrying values as the impact of discounting is not AR EHERBERNAERE
significant. Be
Between
Less than 1and Over
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
DPR—F —ZEhf BEUE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=ZA=+—8H
Trade and bills payables ERNEFRESRE 1,382,487 - - 1,382,487
Other payables and accruals Hib B ERR KB R 177,898 2,274 - 180,172
Borrowings TE - 2,457 - 2,457
Lease liabilities ME&E 29,695 55,494 70,290 155,479
Total st 1,590,080 60,225 70,290